WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

NOTICE

MOTICE is hereby given that the 17th Annual Ganeral Meeting of the Members of Winsome Yarns
Limited, will he held on Friday, the 28th September, 2007 at 10.00 a.m. in Conference Hall No. ||
of Confederation of Indian Industry {CI1), Sector 31-A, Chandigarh to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Profit & Loss Account for the year endad 31st March
2007, and the Balance Sheet as at that date together with the Reports of the Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended 31st March, 2007.
3. To appoint g Director in place of Stiri Chandra Mohan, whe retires by rotation and being eligible.
offers himzelf for re-appointment.
4. To appaint a Director in place of Shri Ashigh Bagrodia, who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself far re-appointment,
5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s}, the fallowing Resclution
as an Ordinary Resclution:
"RESOLVED THAT M/s Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, be and are hereby appointad as
Stalltory Auditers of the company from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeating of the company, at a remuneration to be decided
by the Board of Diractors."
Aegistered Office :
SC0 191192
Sector 34-A,
Chandigarh-160 022
By order of the Board
Dated . 2506 2007 SATISH BAGRODIA
Flagce . Chandigarh Chairman
NOTES :
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the maeting is entitied to appaint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of himself and the proxy nzed not be a member of the Company.
2, The proxy form duly executed and stamped should be deposited with the company at its
Registerad Office not less than forty-eight hours before the maseting.
3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from

24.09 2007 to 2B.09.2007 (both days inclusive).
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The dividend, as recommended by the Board of Dirscters, if approved at the Annual General
Meeting,will he paid to those persons,

{a) whose names appear as Beneficial Ownets as at the end of business hours an
23.00.2007 in the list of Beneficial Qwners to be furizshed by National Securities
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services {India) Limited in respect of the
shares held in electronic form,and

(b} whose hames appear as members in the Ragister of Members of the Company after
giving effect to valid share transters in physical form lodgsd with the Company/its
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents on or before 023.08.2007.

Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to bring their Client 1D and
DP ID Numbers for sasy identification for attendance at the meeting.

ltern No. 3 Padamshres Shri Chandra Mohan aged about 74 years, B.A. (Hons) & B.sc. Mech,
£ngg. {Hons) has Served Punjab Tractors Limited & Swaraj Mazda Uimited as Yice Chairman
and Managing Director for about 28 years. He is also member of many Professiona
Institutions. He is not holding any shares of the company.

Presently, he is the Chairman of RICO Auto Industries Limited & Engineening Innovations
Limited and Diector of Bandhar Technologies Limited, Winsome Yarns Limited, DCM
Engineering limited, Kamla Bials & Devices Limited, 10L Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals
Limited and Winsome Textile Indusiries Lid. He is also the member of Audit Committee in
wWinsome Yams Limited, DCM Engineering Limited and Winsome Textile Industries Ltd. and
member of Bermunaration Committee in DCM Engineering Limited and Kamia Dials & Devices
Limited and member of Shareholders/investors Grievance Committes in Winsome Textile
fndustries Lid,

ltern No. 4- Shri Ashish Bagrodia aged about 36 years, B.E. {(Mech.) from Funjab Engineering
College having around 14 years of experisnce in Textile Industry. He is holding 41400 shares
of tha company.

Presently, he is Joint Managing Cirector of Winsome Textile Industries Limited and Director
of Winsome Yarns Limited, IDS Infotech Limited, Engineering Innovations Limited and
Winsoms Yarns [Cyprus} Limited in Cyprus. He aiso member of Audit Committee in Winsome
Yarns Limited and member of Sharsholders! Investors grievance Commitiee in Winsome
Textile Industries limited.

M/s Intime Spectrum Registry Limited, A-40, 2nd Flgor, Near Batra Banguet Hall, Naraina
industrial Area, Phase-tl, New Delhi-110028 (Tele. 011-41410582-84) is acling as common
agency for dematerialisation and physical transfer of shares of the company. The members
shauld send theair physical shares and letter for change of addrsss and issue of duplicate
shares directly o the aforesaid share transfer agent.
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¥our Directors have pleasure in presenting the 17th Annual Repont together with the audited
statement of Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2007,

Finansial Highlights Year ended 31.3.2007 Year ended 31.3. 2006
{Rs.in lacs) {Bs. n lacs)
Sales 12679.17 12731.64
Profit befare Interest , Depreciation & Tax 2656.79 183276
Less: Interest 796.50 564,88
Profit hefore Depreciation 186D.29 1267.88
Less: Depraciation 74R.74 728.22
Profit before Taxes 1111.55 539.66
Provision for Taxation — Current Tax 58.81 B&.00
- Gredit against MAT (48.46) —
Provision for fringe benefit tax 6.1Q 9.34
Provision for deferred tax liability! {asset) 10.04 (220.23)
Profit after Taxes 1085.06 864 55
Add : Surplus brought forward from previous year 4217 .62 3609.40
5302.68 436395

Appropriation:
Dividand @ 6% [Pravious year 5%) 153.97 128.33
Corporate Dividend Tax 21.59 18.00
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 512712 4217.62
5302.68 4363.95

Operations & Performance

Curing the year under review, your Company has achieved a turmover of Rs. 1257917 lacs and
a profit before tax of Rs. 1111.55 lacs against the previous years turnover of As. 12731.64 lacs
and profit before tax of RAs. 538.66 lacs. Inspite of no significant changss in the turnaver as per
tast year, the cash profit of the company was significantly increased due to efficiancy in oparation
and cost control.

New Project/ Expansion Plans

Your directors are pleased to inform you that the company's Expansicn Plan 1o add 60000 Spindles,
installation of another 180 Knitting Machinas and implamentation of 3.90 MW Hydel Power Proiects
in Punjab were under implementation mostly as per schedule. 30000 Spindles of phase | have
already been commissionad. 18 Knitting Machines nave also received & instailled. Another 52
Knitting Machines are expected by August 2007, Various Government approvals for Power Projacts
have obtained and construction of Fower Houss aetc. will start from July, 2007. Your Directars are
confident there will not be any significant dalay in completion of above Expansion Projects.

Overseas Ventures

Curing the year the Company had floated a wholly owned subsidiary in Cyprus namely Winsome
¥arns {Cyprus) Limited.

Recently. the said Wholly Owned  Subsidiary of the Company acquired the knitwear business of
IMM International S.p A in taly and Romania. A new Company namely Mis Winsome Romania s.r.l.,
Satu Mare, Romania was floated for the purpose. Our Whaolly Owned Subsichary holds 80%
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shareholding of this Company. Winseame Romania s.r.l bad also acquired 100% shareholding of
M/s IMM Winsome Halia s.p.a. based at Agliana, laly, which is engaged in marketing, designing,
planning and sourging of raw materials etc., which in turn holds 100% sharsholding of M/s 5.C.
Textil s.rl, Satu Mare, Romania, which is having spinning and yarn dyeing facilities in Bistrita,
Romania.

Further, yvour Company has also invested for acquiring equity stake of Mfs Newcocot S.p A, ltaly,
engaged in spinning and yarn dyeing through its wholly owned subsidiary in cyprus.

ISAS0 2002/ 14001

Your directors are pleased to inform you that your company continues to be holder of 1SS0 9002/
14001 certificates.

Outlook

A comfortable pasition in band. Our slient addition continues to be strong. Qur inkitigtive in capacity
growth & improved productivity are all on track. Pricing pressura are deciining ard a conducive
atmasphers for growth is anticipated, We expect to grow our business substantialty and believe
should meet this target in current financial year 2007-08.

Dividend

Your Directors are pleased to recommend an enhance dividend & 6% on equity shares of the
company for approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual Genaral Meeting.

Directors

During the financial year, the IFCI vide its letter no. {FCI/NDC-1/2006-31836 dated 27.17.2006 has
withdrawn the nomination of Shei Dinesh Sharma from the Board of Directors of the company, since
the company has repaid all loans of the IFCI. Further Shri 8. K. Duggal ‘has also resigned from
the Board of the company on 22.01.2007 due to his pre-occupaticn.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Shri Chandra Mohan and Shri Ashish
Bagradia, Directors retire by rotation and being eligibie, offer themselves for re-appointment.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Fursuant to the requirament under section 217({2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 with respeacl 10
Directors' Responsibilities Statement, it is hereby confirmed :

i. that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2007, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

H that the accounting policies are applied consistantly and reasonable prudent judgment and
estimataes are made 30 as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for the year under
revigw,

ifi.  that the directors have taken propsr and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequats
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Cormpanies Act 1356 far
satequarding the assets of the company and for preventing and defecting fraud and ather
irregularities;

iv.  that the directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2007
on a going concerm basis.
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Voluntary Dellsting

Shareholders of the company in their Annual General Mzeting held on 27.09.2004, approved to
get the shares of the company votuntary delisted from Ludhiana, Delhi and Calcutta Stock
Exchanges. Accordingly, the company applied for voluntary delisting of shares to the Ludhiana,
Delhi & Calcutta stock exchanges simultaneously on 02.05.2006. Ludhiana and Dealki Stock
Exchanges had delisted the shares of the company w.e.f 17.08.2005 and 14,10.2005 respectively.
Till date, inspite of several remindars, Caleutta Stock Exchange has naver raised any objection for
voluntary delisting of shares of the company.

Auditors

M¢s Lodha & Co, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the company hold office till the conclusion
of the ensuing Amnmual General Mesting and being aligible have offered themselves for re-
appointment. The Company has received a cerificate from M/s Lodha & Co., Chartered Account-
ants, to the effect that thaeir re-appointment as Auditors, if made, would be within the praseribad
limits under section 224 (1-B) of the Companies Act,1956.

Particulars of the Employees
The Pariculars of the employees as required by the provisions of secticn 217 (2A) of the

Companies Act, 1958, read with the Companies {Pariculars of Employess) Aules 1975 as amended,
is annexed to this report.

Conservation of Energy, Technelogy Absorption and Forelgn Exchange saming and outgo

Information in accordance with the provisions of section 217 (1) (&) of the Companies Act, 1958,
read with the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of Diractors) Rules, 1988
regarding conservation of engrgy, technalogy absorption and foreighn exchange earnings and outgo
is piven in the annexure 'A' forming part of this report.

Auditors' Report

Mote No. 3 and 5 of Schedule 14 (B}, Notes on accounts referred in the Auditors' Report are self
axplanatory.

Corporate Governance

Curing the financial year, the company has continued its commitment to the principles of good
Corporate Governance. The company believes that best board practices and transparent disclo-
sures arg necessary for snhancing shareholders value.

A report on Corporate Governance, alongwith a Cerificate of compliance from the Auditors of the
Zompany is attached as annaxure 'B' to this report.

Acknowledgement

Your Dirsctors wish to thanks the company's esteemed Customers, Financial Institutions, Banks,
Government authorities, Suppliers and above all the Shareholders for thair continue support and
cooperation.

Your Directors aiso wish to place on record their appreciation for the sincers services and hard
work put in by the employees at all lavels,
By order of the Board

Place : Chandigarh Satish Bagrodia
Dated : 29.06.2007 Chairman




ANNEXURE 'A' TO DIRECTORS' REPORT WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 21?“E}éE1) READ WITH COMPANIES { DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS
IN THE REPORT OF DIRECTORS) RUL 938 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT FOR
THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
a) Energy conservation measures taken :
The Company has téen giving high priarity to conseration of energy by close manlloring of energ

consuming aguipments, All ris are made for installing engrgy saving devices wherever requirgd.
The company has conlinoed with  the following projects during the year,
Sr.No. Project Undertaken Units saved Annual 3avin
{in As.
1 To reduce the Power Consumption in Workers Colony 12 4,368.00
2 To reduce the Power Consumption of Residential Blocok
k| To reduce Power Consumption in Plant Lghting 274 88, 736.00
4 Ta reduce Power Consumplion in LUWA Plant 834 3,03 576.00
5 To reduce Power Consumption in Comprassed Air System —
5 To reduce Power Consumption in Yarn conditioning 32 11,648.00
Total Saving 1152 418328.00
b Additional investrents and proposals,if any.being implamented for reduction of consumption of

energy.
Additional Investments, whereever required, are being made.

¢) Impact of the maasuras at (a) & (b} abova for raduction of energy  consumplion and consequent
tmpact on the cost of preduction of goods.
Though there is saving of about As. 4.19 lacs but averall energy cost has not reduced due o increass
in diegel & furnace ol cost and increase in unit power cost of PSER.

d} Total energy consumption and snergy consumption per unit of production as per Form-A of the
Annexure to the rules in respect of Industries speclfied in the schedule thereto:

A} Power and Fuel consumpticn Current Year Previous Year
1. Electriciy

a) Purchased Linit (KW) 15487840 13380460
Total amount {As in 1acs) &71.79 ET4.08
Rate/Unil {Rs) 4.34 4,29

b Own Generation through
Diesel Generator Unit{KW) 17200410 19570242
Units/Ltr.of Digsel Qil aim 4.02
Cost/UnitiHs/Kv) 5.49 418
2, Coagﬁ;edly quality and where used) NIL MNIL
3. LSH Furnags Cil Giy. (MT) 313z2.a1 4169.55
Total amount {As.in lacs) 642.53 G558 .67
Pyverage ratefRs.per M.T.) 17533 15797
4. Gas {CHy. In MT) NIL MIL
Tatal amaunt (As.in lacs) NIL MIL
Avarage rate] As.per Kqg) MIL MIL

B) Consumption per Unit of Productlon

Eleciricity (KW 335 2.27
LSHS & Furnace Qil {Lts) NIL NIL
Gas (Kgs) NiL MIL

Il. TECHNOLOGY ABSOAPTION
Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form-B of the Annexure 1o he Rules.

1} Reaearch & Development {RAD)

a) Specific area in which R&D carried by tha Company
Latest new technology has been adopted.

by BeneMms derived as a resull of the above RED
Producing Intemational quality products.

e} Future plan of Action :
— This is an ongoing process and continuous improvements are being carried out in the Plant &

Machinery maintenance and the quality of fimished products.
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d] Expenditure on R&D (Rs. in lacs)

Capital NIL
F{ecurrin% As5.14.89 Lacs
Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of tatal twmover = 0.11%

2) Technology absorption.adoption and Innovation.

aj Effortsin brief.made towards technology absorption and inhowation
— Eguipments of latest technclogy have heen installed without any foreign technical knowledge.

b Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e.g. product impravement, cost reduction, product
development, import substitution eic.
— There has been benefit in respect of quality and Froductivity of the product.

c) In case of impeored technology(imported during the 1ast 5 yvears reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year), — MNil

Il. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EAANING AND OUTGO

a) Activities relating to exports Initiatives taken to increass expons, development for new export markel
for products and services and export plans.

Exporis {FOB Yalue) of the Company have increased from Rs. 7137.51 lacs in 2005-06 o Rz, 8073.50
lacs in 2006-07). New export markets have been devaloped and exports are likely to increase further.

b} Total foreign exchange used and sarmed. {As. in lacs)
Current Year Pravious Year

Earning a07Ts.14 F146.93
Outgo: 7949.27 408,090

For and on behatf of the Board

Flace : Chandigarh Satish Bagrodia
Dated @ 29.06.2007 Chairman

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE SECTION
217 2(A) OF COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ WITH THE COMPANIES {PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES)
RULES, 1975 AND FORMING PARTY OF THE HRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDHNG 315T
MARCH, 2007

&r. Mame of Deslgnationy Qualificaton Tota) Workmg  Date of Total Ape Previous
Mo Employes Mature of Exparience Commencement Remuneration {Years) Tmployrment
dirties fYears) of Employment  {Rs. in lacs) held

A Persons emplioyed throughout the year, who were in receipt of remuneration not |ess than 2400000/-

1 Shri Manish Bagrodia Managing  M.Com, 20 711,/1994 38.R4 3 Winsame
Director Advance Tetile
Diploma in Industries
Computer Limited
Applications

B. Parsons employed for part of the year who was in receipt of remuneration for any part of the year at a
rate which in aggregate was not less than Rs, 200000~ per month, — Nil

MOTES !

1. Remuneration a5 abowve includes Salary, House Rent Allowance ar Housing Accommodation and
reimbursemeant of Medical Expenses and other perks! beneflts provided by tha Company.

2. Shri Manish Bagrodia, Managing Director is related to Shri Satish Bagrodia, Chairman and Shri Ashish
Bagrodia, Director of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

i. Company's phllosophy on code of Governanca.

Carporate Governance is an Inlegral part oi values, ethics and the best business practices followed by the
Company. The Company reafiirms its commitment ¢ the good Corpovaie Governahes practices. The core
valuas of the Company ara:

- Commitment to excellence and customer satisfaction.
Maxirmising long term shareholders' value.

Socially walued enterprise and

Caring for peopla and environment.

In & nutshell. the philosophy can be described as observing of business practices with the ultimate aim of
enhancing long-term shareholders' value and cormmitment ko high standard of buginess ethics. The Company
has in ptace a Code of Corporate Ethics and Canduct reiterating its commitment o maintain the highest
standards in its Interface with take-holders and clearly laying down the core values and corporate ethics to
ke practiced by its entire management cadra.

2. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors presenty consists of six directors, out of which threa are Promoter Directors {one don
Executive Chairman. ane Executive Marnaging Diractor and one Non-Executive Diractor) and three are Maon-
Executive Independant directors, out of which one is representing PSIDC (as Joint Sector represantative).
None of the directors on the board is 2 member on mare than 10 committees and chairman af more than
5 committees ( as specifled in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges), across all the
companies in which they are directars. The necessary disclosures regarding committee memberships have
been made by the directors,

During the financial year, the IFCI vide its letter na. IFCHYNDC-1/2008-31836 dated 27 11,2006 has withdrawn
the nomination of Shri Dinesh Sharma from the Board of Directors of the company, since the campany has
repaid all loans of the IFCI. Further 8hri & K. Duggal has also reslgned from the Board of the company
an 22.01.2007 due to his pre-occupation.

During the financial year 200607, saven board mestings were heid. The meetings were held on 26th April,
2006, Pnd June, 2006, 28th July, 2006, 28th Septembear, 2006, 30th Dctober, 2006, 23rd Movember, 2006 and
31zt January, 2007 and L1he maximum time gap between any two mestings was not more than four months,

The names and categories of directors on the board, their attendance at Board Meatings during the year
and at the last Annual Genaral Megting, as also the number of Directorshipsf Committes memberships/
chairmanship held by them in other companies are given below:

Mo. of Directorship and Committee Mambership! Chairmanshlp

Name of the Diractor | Calegory Altandamce No. of No. of Mamberzhlp/ Chalrmanshig in
Particutars Dirgciorship Committees
Board Last Cther Membership | Chairmanship Total
Megting AGM Directorship
Shri Satigh Bagrodia | Chawman(NED; B Yes 3 — — —
Shri Chapdra Mihan INED B L{:F] g 3 — 3
Shri 5., Duggal* INED 5 No 11 2 3 B
Shri Beij Khanna INED 7 Yes 2 — 2 2
Shri Dinesh Sharma** INED 2 No 1 1 — 1
Shri S.K. Slngls FNEDHPSIDL) B ¥as 13 — — —
Shri Ashish Bagrodia WED 6 Yes 4 ) — 2
Shri Manish Bagrodia MD 7 Yas ] 1 — 1

INEC : tndependent Mon Executive Director

NWED : Non Execulive Director

MO ; Manaping Directar

*Resigned fram the Board of the company on 22.01.2007.

**Withdrawal of nopmination by IFC! from the Board of the comparty on 27.11,2006.
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Code of Conduct

In terms of the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and contemporary practices of good Corporate
Governance, the Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Seniar Management
of the Gompany. Ali the Board members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with
the Code.

3. Subsidiary Company

During the year, company has fioated Wholly Owned Subsidiary in Cyprus namely Yinsome Yarns (Cyprus)
Limited.

4. Audit Committes

The Audit Committee functtns in accordance with the terms of reference set out under Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement read together with Section 252A of the Companies Act, 1956, and additional responsibilities
assigned to it by the Board of Directors. The Committes also reviews the reports of the internal auditors
alongwith the comments of management. The functions of the Audit Committee among athers, include
approving and implementing the audit procedures, reviewing the financial reporting system, intemal contral
angd procedure and ansuting compliance with regulatory guidelines.

The composition, names of the members, chairperson, particulars of the mestings and attendance of the
members duting the financial year are as below:

During the financial year, four Audit Committee meetings were held on 2nd June, 2006, 28th July, 2008, 30th
Octaber, 2006 and 31st January, 2007,

Sr.No. Name of membars Catagory No. of meatings attended
during the year 2006-2007

i Shri Brij Khanna, Chairman Independent/Non-Executive 4
2 shri Chandra Mahan independert/Mon-Exacutive 4
3 Shri 5 K Duggal* Indepandent/Mon-Executive 3
4 Shri Dinesh Sharma** Independant/Non-Exacutive 1
5. Shri Ashish Bagrodia®** Non-Executive 1

*Resigned from the Board of the company on 22,01.2007.
*withdrawal of normination by IFCI from the Board of the company on 27.11.2006.
exkAoprinted as member on 3112007,

The Managing Director alongwith the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and [ntemal Auditor were invitees to
the meelings.

5. Remuneration of Directors

The company has not set up a Remunsration Commitiee because remunaration of Directors hag beesn
approved by the Board of Directors. Managing Director has been appaintad for 5 years w.e.f. 01.07.2004
and has drawn his remuneration as per terms of appointment. The details of rermuneration paid to the Directors
during the year 2008-07 are given bolow ;

Non-Executive {Amount in Rs)
Name of Directors Sitting Fees Tatal
Shri Satish Bagrocdia A0000 S0000
Shri Chandra Mohan 30000 SO0
Shn Brij Khanna 35000 5000
Shri § K Dungal 25000 25000
Shri Dinesh Shama (IFC| Nomineeg) 10000 = 00K
Shri 8 K Singla (PSIDC Nominge) 30000 * 30000
Shri Ashizsh Bagrodia 30000 30000
* The sitting fee has been paid to the nominating institutions,

Executiva {R=. in lacs)
Name of Director Salary Perquisites * Total
Shri Manish Bagrodia 37.39 1.15 38.54

*  Perquisites includes Contribution to Provident Fund and other perks.
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6. Sharehoiders/ Investors Grievance Committee :
The Shareholders/ Investors Grievance Commitiee funclions with tha following objectlves:

Redressing of Sharshalders and  Investors complairts, regarding to share transfers, non-receipt of balance
sheet ! dividend by the shareholder etc. During the financial year 2006-07, four Sharehelders’ Invaskors
Grievance Committee meatings were held on 2nd June, 2006, 28th July, 2006, 20th Octaber, 2006 and 31st
January, 2007. Complaints/ grievances, raceived during the year have been resclved in time,

The composition, names of the members, chairparson, particulars of the mestings and aftendance of the
members during the year are as below:

Sr.No. Name of mambers Calegory No. of meetinga attended
during the year 2006-2007

1 Shri Bnj ¥hanna, Chairman IndependentyMon-Exegutive 4

2 Shri 3 K Cuggal* Independant/Mon-Executive a

3 Shri Manizsh Bagrodia Executive &

*Resignad on 22.1.2007.

During the financial year, the request for transter/demat/remat of shares, change of address etc  have been
duly effacted. During the year 22 nos. of complaints were received, resolved & replied and no grievance was
pending at the end of the financial year,

Shri Manish Bagrodia, Managing Directar/ Shri K ¥ Singhal, By. General Manager {MIS) and Campany
Secretary are the Comphance Officer of the company for SEBIF Stock Exchange/ROC related issues eio.,

7. General Body Meetings
The last three Annual General Mestings of the Company were held as under :

Year Vanua Datn Time

2003-2004  Tagore Theatre, Sector 18-C, Chandigarh 27. Sep. 2004 10.00 A M.
2004-2005  Tagore Theatre, Sector 16-C, Chandigarh 189 Sep. 2005 10000 AM.
2005-2006  Tagore Theatre, Sector 18-C, Chandigarh 28. Sep. 2006 10,00 AM.

All the resotutions, including one special resolution on 27.08.04 and four special resolutions on 25.09.06 as
Set Ot in the respective notices wera passed by the shareholders. No Postal ballots were used for voting
at these mastings. At the forthcoming AGM, tharg is no tem on the agenda that neads approval by Postal
ballots.

B. Discloaures

« There are no materally significant related party transactions made by the company with its promoters,
directars or management, their relatives ste. thal may have potential conflict with the interest of the company
at large. Transaciions with relzted parties are disclosed in Note Mo, 22 of Schedule 15 of the Accounts
in the Annual Repart.

* During the last three years, there were no striciures or penalties imposed by either SEBI or the Stock
Exchanges or any Statutory Authority for nen-compliance of any matter related to the capital markels.

9. Means of Communications

= The quarterly and half yearly results are published in widsly circulating national & |ocal dailies news papers
such as Economle Times (in English) and Dainik Triobune (in Mindi). The same are alss baeing posted on
SEB| website under EDIFAR.

» The management Discussion and Analysis report forms a part of this Annual Report.

10
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10. Genaral Shareholder information

Annual General Mesting at 10.00 a.m, on 28th September, 2007 in Canference Hall No. |1 of Confederation
of Indian tngdustry (Cith, Sector 31-A, Chandigarh.

Financial Calendar

Date of Book Closure (both days inclusive}

Dividerrd payment date
Listing on Stock Exchanges

Demat ESIN Number in NSDL & CDSL

Annual listirg fees for the year 2006-2007 have been paid to BSE & NSE. Listing fee to Calcutta Stock Exchange
has not been paid as the company has applied to this stock exchange on 02.05.2005 for veluntary delisting
of shares as par the approval of shareholders and till date no ohjection has even been raised by the Caloutta

Stock Exchange in this regard.

1st April to 315t March
24.08.2007 to 28.00.2007 (bath days inclusive)

On or after 28th September, 2007
1. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSEj

2. The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE)

INE 784B0OTOME

Market price data - high and low dunng sach menth on BSE in the finahcial year 2006-07 Stock code-514348
(websile-- baeindia.com), MSE Scrip Code - WINSOMYARN.

Months High Low Closaed Shares
April, 2006 21.00 18.20 1285 A22928
May, 2006 23.00 15.80 17.10 342486
June, 2008 17.76 12.60 14.00 135314
July, 2006 16.00 12.55 14.64 &0713
August, 2008 18.32 14,72 16.19 1862450
September, 2005 18.10 15,75 16.00 178880
October, 20086 18,80 16.10 19.00 2648M
Movember, 2006 £0.25 18.30 18.70 245795
Crecember, 2006 18.25 16.00 17.40 121255
January, 2007 23 860 16 60 20.75 295205
Febtruary, 2007 22 .25 17.25 18.45 213205
March, 2007 18.80 19.50 16.20 8175

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Share Transfar System

Compliance Cficers
E-maill IDs

Intime Spectrum Registry Lid.

A-4), 2nd Floor, Near Batra Banguet Hall,
Maraina Industrial Area, Phase I,

MNew Delhi-110028

Tel, : 0114141059284, Fax - 4141051
E-mail : delhi@intimespectrum.com

Shares iodged in physical lorm with the STA directly or through
company, are processed and refurned, duly transferred. within 30
days normally, axcept in cases which are under objection,

In respect of shares held in dematerialised mode, the lransfer
takes Hace instantaneously between the transferor, transferee
and the Depository Participant through electranic debit/credit of
the accounts Fwolved.

Shri Manish Bagrodia and Shri KV, Singhal
dgm.es@winsormagroyp, com  «  cshare@wingamegroup, com

11



WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

Distribution of shareholding as on 315t March, 2007,

Range of Shares No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders Mo, of Shargs % of Shareholding
1. 500 12486 8873 2202289 558

501 - 10040 838 5.96 13800 278

10071 - 2000 384 2.73 G10980 2.38

2001 - 3000 122 0.7 az:av7 1.26

3001 - 4000 46 033 166477 0.B5

4001 - 5000 55 0.4y 2677 1.04

5001 - 10000 a1 0.48 434357 183

10001 and above 70 0.50 20888109 £1.38

Total 14070 100.00 25885979 104,00
Shareholding Fattern 2= an 31st March, 2007,

Category MNo. of shares Percentage
Fromoters/Persons acting in concert 17964609 G3.99
Financial Institutions/Banks/Mutual Funds 502094 1.98
MNAls 133431 0.52
Bodies Corporates 1839185 F.a7
Indian Public 5226660 20368
Total 25665970 100.00

Doetails of shareholding of Directors in the company as on 31.03,.2007

Mame of Director

Mo, of shares hald

Shri Satish Bagrodia
Shri Aszhish Bagrodia
Shri Chandra Mohan
Shri Brij Khanna
Shri & K Duggal
Stiri Dinesh Sharma
Shri 3 K Singla

Dematerialization of shares and ligukdity

420800
41400
1000
2000

Qutstanding GORS! ADRSS Warrants or
any convertible instrurnents, converskan
date and likely impact on edeity.

Plant Location (Yam)

(Kiiltwear)

Address for correspondence

Plage
Dated

: Chandigarh
: 29.06.2007

B8.07% of the shares issued by the company have bean
dematerialized upta 3181 March, 2007,

The company has not issued any GDRS/ ADRSMWarrants
or any convertible instruments, the camversion of which will
have an impact on equity shares,

Vilage-Kurawala, Tehsil-Derabassi
Distt. Mohali (Punjab)

Winsome Knitwear {Prop. Winsome Yarns Limitad)
C-138, Industrial Area, Phase-VIll, Mohali [PB}

The Company Secretary
Winsome Yarmns Limiled
SC0 191-192, Sector 34-A,
Chandigarh- 160022

By order of the Board

Satish Bagrodia
Chairman
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: WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CQONDITIONS CF CORPQAATE GOVERMAMCE AS PER
CLAUSE 4% OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGES.

To tha membera of Winsoma Yama Limited

We have axamined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Winsome Yarns Limited, for the year
ended 31=t March, 2007, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Lizting Agreement of the said Company with the Stock
Exchanges,

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Gowvernance is the responsibillty ©f management. Qur examination was
limited /¢ procedures and implenentation thereof, agdopied by the Company W ansure compliance with the conditions
of Corporate Governance, It 15 naither an gudit nor an axpression of opinion on the flnancial statemants of the
COMpany.

It aur DRinion and 10 the best of our information and according 10 the explanations gven to us, we cartify that the
company has complied with the conditions of Corporata Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing
Agreement.

We state that nt Investor grievances are Gpanmng for a period axcesding one month against the Company as per
the records majntained by the Investor Grievanca Commithes,

We further state that such compliance is neither as assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the afficiancy
or affactivenass with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Gompany.

For Lodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place : Chandigarh MK, Lodha
Date : 29.06.2007 Fartner
M.Mo, B5155

MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DNSCUSSION REPORT
INDUSTRY SCEMARIO

The Indian Textiles Industry has an overwhalming presence in the economic life of the country. Apart from providing
ohne of the basic necessitles of ife, the textiles industry also plays a plvolal rele through its contribution b industrial
autput, @mployment generation, and the export earnings of the country, Currently, it contributes about 14 percent
1 industrial production, 4 percant o the GOP, and 165.63 parcent to the countny's export earnings, It provides direct
employment to over 35 millioh people, which includes a substantial number of scheduled castes. schaduled tribes,
and woman. The textiles sectar is the second largest provider of employment after agricubure. Thus, the growth and
all round devalopment of this industry has a direct bearing on the improvamant o?lhe economy of the nation.

THE ORGANISED TEXTILE INDUSTRY

The CottonfMan-made fibre textilas induslry is the l1argest organized industry in the country in terms of employment
inearly 1 million workers) and number of units. Besides, there are a lgrge number of subsidary industries dapendent
on this $ector, such as those manufacturing machinery, accessorief, slores. ancilliaries, dyes & chemicalzs. As an
Jenuary 31, 2007, there were 1813 cotlon/man-made fibre testiles millz {non-S81}, with an installed capacity of 35.37
millipn Spindles and Q.45 milllon rotors. This was expacted o ingrease ta 35.50 milkon spindles and 0.62 mitlion fotors
by March 31, 2007, The production of spun yam, which was 3160 million kg, in 2000-2001, increased 1o 3458 million
kg, in 2005-06, and is anticipated to touch 3791 million kg, during 2006-07-

THE COTTON SECTOR

Thg buoyancy in the textites sector can be assessed from the fact that consumption of cotton tha mill and nan-
mill sectors has been increasing over the years, from 195.03 lakh bales in 2004-05, 10 a resond figure of 217 lakh
bales n 20506 and 240 lakhs bales in 2006-07.

Cotioh is Whe majer raw malerial for the domestle textiles industry. It plays a vital role in the country's economy by
providing sulstantial employment opportunities and contribubes significantly 1o the country's expon samings. In 2004-
Q% the ratio ot the use of cotton o man-made fibre ard man-made filameant yam by the texilas Industry was 5644
(Prov.). The sector provides employmeni to about 50 million people in retated activilies like cultivation, lrade. and
procaEging.

Indiz is the sacond largest cothon producer in the word, actounting for 16,75% of the global production, with tha
largest Cutltivaled area. which is approximately © million hectare. However, in produgsivity (501 kg./ha) the country
lags befnd the other major cotton produsing countrigs, viz, USA 931 kgrha). Thina (1140 kg/ha) and Australia (f 806
ka/ha}. The global average is 728 kg/ha. One of the major reasons lor low yield is that 55% of the area under cotton
cultivation is rainfed.

The country hamvestad a bumper cotton crop for the =econd successive year - During 2005-06, the oulpul wes a
record 244 |lakh bales {170 kg. Each) and it reached 270 lakh balag { 170 kg =ach) in the cofton season of 2006-
07, The cultivated ares increased from BE.77 lakh hectarss o 91.58 lakh hectares. The yisld per hactare has also
nereased from 478 kg ha to 501 kgd ha
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

TEXTILES EXPORTS

DUT"IH? the year Textile Ew|xbrts contributad 16.63% to the country'’s t0tal exports eamings, and India's share in the
gicbal textiles and apparel markel is 3.9% and 3%, respectively. Tha taxtiles exports basket consists of ready-made
gartments, cotton textiles, lextiles made from man-made fipre, wool and woollen goods, silk, handicrafts, coir, and
jute. According to data provided by the Dirgctorate General of Commarcial

Imtelligence and Statistics (MGOI&S), Kolkata teslliles exports were US § 14 killion in 2004-05, and ingreased to US
£ 17 billign in 2005-06, regiztering an mcrease of about 22%. Textiles axports during Apnl-October 2008, increased
250%4?% in dollar terms, and 11.43% in Aupee terms, and was sxpected 10 reacr?%l.!ﬁﬁi 1873 billion by March 31,

TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION FUND SCHEME ([TUFS)

The Techng Upgradation Fund Scheme, the lagship scheme of the Minlstry of Texties, was launched on April
1,1998, with the oblective of making tunds available to the domestic textiles industry to upgrade the technology of
exizting units, and also to s&t up Rew units with state-of-the-an technology in order o enhance it viability and
competitivensss in the domestic and inarnational markets. The schame, which was 1o last upto March 31, 2004,
was exiagndad till March 31,2007, In the Xth five year plan {(2002-07), As.1,270 crores was earmarked for the
scheme The Governmen! have decided to conlinag the scheme in the Xith hve yaar ptan, and RBs.911,00 crores had
been earmarked for the scheme during 2007-08. {Howevar, details of the exten schama is yet to be notihed.)

The schame covers splnning, cotton ginning & pressing, silk resling & twisting, woo! scouring & combing, synthetic
filament yarn taxmrising, crimping &nd twisting, manufacture of wiscose filament yam MFY) viscose staplo fibre (WSF],
waavingikniting {including non-wavens) and technical textilez. | also covers the manufacture and processing of
fibres, yarns, fabrics, garments srd Made-ups, the jute secor, and handloom sectar (since 2006-07).

MARKET INFLUENCING FACTORS

*  Fluctuations in Fiber cotton prices, as it comprises major portion of manufcturing cost.

=  Export damand from main importing countries,

* Fluctuation in currency valug.

= World proguction, consumplion. import, export and ending stocks of cotton and yam,

MANAGEMENTS PHILOSOPHY ON QUALITY

Management's quality policy is to: *Provide reliable high-guality products to customers”

The Company has adopted the juran mathodology for continuos  improvement. A Quality Council Consisting of all
HOD: az Member under the Chairmanship the Managing Director is responsinle for undertaking varlous
improvemeant programma.

The Quality Coundl has undartaken updl now 40 projects in last three years oul of which 34 projacts are completed
and balanga arg in progress. There has beon a substantial impravemsdt in quality and cost etormics, At the same
rme it has been a educative procedura for all the employees of the company to lzam problem solving techniques
through a systematic approach. .

The Company has also implemented a quality and reliabillty system that meets the international quality assurance
standard, and achleved 15/1S0 9002/ 14001 getification,

The Management is puilding a system that can reliably create hi?lh-quality. high-rediability products and at the zame
lime working hard o constantly improve quality and refiabllity that arg reassuring to customers undar the "Better
Cluality” motta,

INTERANAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has adequate internal contrad proceduras commensurate with its size and nature of buginess. These
intemal policies ensure officient use and protectlon of assets and resources, compliance with policies, statutes and
ensure reliability as well as prompiness of financial and operational reports.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

*An Crdanization is only as godd a5 the people within® iz an axiom, which the company understands and appraciates
desply. The Company continuegs (o erg?hasize on its commitrment 1¢ acquiring, devetoping and anbancing its humen
potantial . Recruitment and retention of intallectual capital is a key management axerciss. The Company's human
capital constitutes a diverse pool of knowiedge a judicious mix of youth, imagination, risk-teking ability and saasoned
exXpariance.

We continug to build our team with high quality talent. Manpowsr investment continues to be skewad towsards
marketing, sales and research.

By order of the Board

Place  : Chandigarh Satish Bagrodia
Cated . 28.05.2007 Chaurrman
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AUDITOR'S REPORT WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

T THE MEMBERS OF WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Winsome Yams Limited as at 31st March 2007 and atso the
Frofit and lozs Account and Cagh Fiow Statermant for the year snded on that date annexed thereto, These
financial statements are the responsibility of Company's management. Our regponsibility is 0 express an
opinicn on these financial stalements based on our audit.

We conducted guf audit in accordance with the sudliting standards generally accepted in india. Those
Standards require that we plan and petiorm the audit to obtain reasonabls assurance about whether the
financial stalemants are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examiming, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statementz. An audit also includes assessing the
acceunting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well a5 evaiuating Lhe
ovarall financial staternent presentation. We belisve that our audht provides a reasanable basis for our opinion,
We report that .

1. As required by the Companies (Audiors Report] Order, 2003 (a5 amenged} ("The Order") issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956 {"The Act™}, wa annaxe
& statermnent on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure refermed to in paragraph 1 above, we report that:

{il We have gbtained all the information and explanations, which to the bast of owr knowledge and belief
were necgssary for the purposes of aur aodit;

(i} In our opinign proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far
as appears from our exarnination of thozse books;

{iii} The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Staternent dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account of the Company;

{iv}In our opinton, the Balance Shest and Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flaw Statement dealt with
by this report eomply with the accounting standards referred to in sub section (3G} of Saction 211 of
the Companies Act, 195E;

tvy On the basis of written reprezentations received from the diractors of the Company and taken on regord
by the Board of Directors, we repart that none of the director is disgqualiied as on 31.3.07 from being
appointed as director in terms of clauge (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Campanies Act,
1956,

(vi) Attention is invitad to:

{a) Note No. 8 regarding provislon for depraclation has been made on cartain Plant and Machinery
as per the rates applicable 1o continuous process plant basad on technical evalution as stated
in the sald note, which 18 a technical matter {Impact Unascertained}.

(b} Note No. 11 regarding non provision for shortiall in recovery (amount unascertainable) against
overdue dabts aggregating Rs.149.76 |acs for which |egal and other persuaslve aclions for
recavery has been Inltistad, since In the opinlon of the mangement thase debts are good and
recoverable.

We further report that the profit for the year, tha balance In reserve and surplus, debiors and fixad assets
are without considering items mentlonad above, tha affect of whicth could not be determined.
Subject to the forgoing, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aaid accounls read with Nole No 20 of Schedule 158 and read together with other noles
on accounts give the information as required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner 50 required and
gve a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted m India:
iil m the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the company a= at 31st March, 2007;
(i) in the case of the Profit and Loss aceaunt, of the profit of the company for the year ended on that date;
andg
{ii in the case of Gash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows for the year #nded on that date.
For Lodha & Co.
Charlersd Accountants

Flace : Chandigarh MK Lodha
Date : 29.06.2007 Pariner
Membership Mo, 35155
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ANNEXURE 70 THE AUDITORS' REPORT WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of our report of even date {o the mambers of Winsome Yarns Limited for the year
endead 31st March 2007,

1. (&) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars ingluding quantitative details and
situation of fixed zassats.

(b A= explained to ws, the fixed assets have been physicaly verified by the managemenl according ta
the regular pregramme of periodical verification In phased manner which in our gpinion |5 reasonable
having regard to size of the company and the nature of its fixed assets. The discrepancies noticed
cn such physical verification were not material,

{&] No substantial part of fixed assets has been disposed off during the year, which effects geoing concern
concepl.

2, (&) As explained to us, the inventory of the campany have besn physically verified by the managemant
durng the year, In our opimch, the freguency of such verfication is reasonable having regard 10 the
nature of business and partleular circumstances.

{t) In our opinicn ang aecording to the infermation and explanation given 1o us, the procedures of physical
verification of Inventaries fallowed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation o the
size of the company and the nature of its buginess.

[c) According to the information and explanation given to us, we are of the opinion that the company is
maintaining praper records of inventory (In case of process stock, records are updated on monthly
physical verificat'on of stocks). As per records and information made available the dizcrepancies noticed
an verification batween the physical stocks and the book records were not material in relation o the
gperations of the company.

3. The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, securedfunsecured toffrom companies, firms or
other parties as covered in the ragister maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act 1956
Accordingly, the Provisions of clauses 4 {ii) {b) to (d}, (f & (g) of the Order ars not applicable to the
Company,

4. In cur opinien and according to the information and explanationg given 1o us, having regard o the
explanation that some of the iterms purchased are of special nature for which as explained, used departmant
has preferred speciflc tems/brands andfor for which alternative sourcefquotations are not available. there
are internal cortrol system commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business
with regard to purchases of Inventories, fixed assels and for the sale of goods and services which needs
to e futher strengthened. Based on the audit Frocedure Performed and on the basis of our audit, we
have nol ohserved any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal control system.

5. {a} According 10 the information and explanations provided by the management and based upon audit
pracedures parformed, we are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred
1o in Section 301 of the Act have boen ertered in the register raguirad to be maintained under that
sectionand
(o) In our opinion and accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made
in pursvance of such canracts of arangements (gxceeding the value of As. S lacs In respect of each
party during the financial year) have been made at the prices which are generally reasonable having
regard lo prevailing markat prices &t the relevant time.

B. According 10 tha information and explanations given 1o us, the company has nol accepted any deposits
from public within the meaning of Sections 584, 58AA and rules framed thereunder and the directivas issued
by Reserve Bank of india and other relevent provisions of the Act. We have been informed that no order
has bean passed by the Company law Board or National Compary Law Tribunal or Raserve Bank of india
ar any Court or any olher Tribunal in this regard.

7. In aur opinion, the Company has an intermal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of ils
business.

B. Wa hava broadly reviewed the books of aceount maintained by the company as prescribed by the Central
Government for the mainienance of cost records under section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956
and are of tha opinion that prima facie the preseribed records have been made and maintained. We have.
however, not made a detailed examinaion of the said records with view to determing whether thay are
accurate and complete.
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

9. {a) Aceording o the records of the company, the company i5 generally regular in depositing wath
appropriate authoritiea undisputed statutory dues including Provigent Fund, Investor Education and
Protection Fund, Employess' State [nsurance, theome Tax {except in case of Fringe Beneft Tax), Sales
Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Outy, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues
apphcable to it According to the information angd explanations given to us, there are no wndisputed
statutory dues payable for a period mora than six months from the date they became payable as at
31.03 2007,

{b According to the records and information and explanations given to us, there are no dués in raspect
af Income Tax, Custom Duty, Wealth Tax, Service Tax and Cess that have not been deposited on account
of any digpute. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
duesz in respect of Sajes Tax and Excise duty that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of dispute and the forum wherg the dispules are pending are given below:

Name of Status Nature of Dues | Period 10 which | Amount {ln Lacs} | Forum Where pending
the amount relaies
Cantral’ State Sales ta Gales lax 1899- 2300 435 Joint Director Excise and Tacation
Central Excise Act Excise Duty 1998-98 143 CESTAT
Excise Duty Excise Duty 2001-02 10.09 CESTAT

{excluding exctze show cause notices)

10. The Company has no accumulated loszes at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash
lnzses during the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

11.tn Dur opinion, @n the ig of audit procedures and according Lo the informatians and explanations given
ta us, the campany haspatavhed in repayment of dues to financial institutian ar banks or debenture haolders
as the balance sheet .

12 Based on aur examination of the records and the information and explanations given 10 ys, the Company
has not granted any loans and /of advances on the hasis of securily by way of pledge of shares, debenture
and other securities.

13. Clause (xii) of the order is not applicable 1o the company as the company is Not a Chit Fund Company
or ndhi mutual berefit fund! socisty.

14.In our opinign, the company is nat gealing in or trading in shares, securities, debsnture and opther
inyastmert.

15 According o tha information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guargntee
for loans taken by athers from banks and financial institution,

16. According to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans were applied for the purpose
for which the [0ans ware obtalned.

17. According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of Lhe balance
sheet of the Company, we are of the gpinion that the company has not used fund raised on shert-term
basis Bs. 1500 lacs for long-term investments.

18. The compary has not made any prefgrential allotment of shares 10 parties and campanies coversd in the
Register maintdined under Section 301 during the year.

18. Mo debenturg has been issued/ cutstanding during the year hence lhe provision of clause 4ixix) of the
gatd arder arg- not applicablie.

20. The company has not raiged money by publle issues during the year.

21. Based on the audit procedures performed and information and explanation given by the managemant.
wa report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of gur
audit.

For Ledha & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place : Chandigarh MK Lodha
Date  © 202.06.2007 Partner
Membership Na.: 851685
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2007

WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE 315t March 2007 st March 2008
(Rs. In lags) {Rs. in lacs)
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 1 257421 287821
Reserves & Surplus 2 5346.56 443706
Loan Funds
Secured Loans 3 1148091 T136.32
Unsecured Loans 4 T343.23 —
Deferred Tax Hability (Net) 156272 158268
28330.63 1572727
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fized Assets 5
a} Gross Blook 15205.64 1513218
bl Less | Depreciation S980.19 523433
¢} Met Block 9225.45 DHGT BE
di Capital work-in-progross 9933 84 284,35
1915929 10182.20
Investmanta 1.05
Current Assets, Loans & Advances ¥
Imventones 5823.39 3789973
Sundry Debtors 1058.59 1286 .87
Cash and Bank Balances 1273.82 405 67
Loans & Advances BB2T.24 15300 41
13683.08 620268
Less : Currsnt Liabililes & Provisions 8 4812.75 1347 61
Mat Current Assets H170.29 5555 07
28330.63 16737.27
Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 15
As per our repart ol sven date.
For LODHA & CO.
Chartared Accourmants
M.K. Lodha K., Singhal Manizh Bagrodia Salish Bagrodia Diractars @ Shri Brij Kharna
Parirers Company Secralary  Managing Director Chalrman Shri Chandra Mohan

PLACE : Chandigarh
OATED @ 29.08 2007

Shrl Ashish Bagrodia
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE 31st March 2007 318t March 2006
{Rs. in lacs) (Rs. i lacs)
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
Sales g 1257917 12731 .64
Less Excise Duly 129.83 223.44
Mot Soles 12449.34 12508.20
Increase/(Decreasa} in Stacks 10 586.08 (57E.52)
Other Income i4 541,12 45,40
13676.54 11978.08
COST OF OPERATIONS
Raw Materials consumed 11 6403.14 6031.67
Coftton Yarn Purchase —_ 65.66
Manufactoring & other Exponses 12 4526.61 30487 .99
1101875 10145.32
FACQFIT BEFORE INTEREST & DEPRECIATION 2656.79 1832.76
Less. Financial Expenses 13 796.50 564.88
1B60.29 1267 .86
Depreciation Ta4.74 F28.22
Met Profit befors Tax 1711.55 530.66
Less : Proyision tor Taxation
— Current Tax 58.81 868,00
- Cradit against MAT (14.46) —
— Frings Bensfit Tax 6.10 8.34
— Deferred Tax Liability/{(Asseft) 10.04 {220.23)
MNet Profit after Tax 1085.06 684,55
Add : Balanee brought forward from last year 4217.62 3638.40
Balance availabla for appropriation 5302.68 436395
APFROFPRIATIONS
Proposed Dividend on EqQuity Sharas 153.97 123.33
Tax on Diidend 21.59 15.04Q
Balance carried to Balance Shest 512712 4217.62
5302 .54 A363.95
caring Per Share-Basic and Dikted (Rg) 4.23 259
Acchuwnting Policies & Notes on Accounts 15
As per our rapoit of even date,
For LDODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
MK, Lodha k.. Singhat Manizh Bagrodia catish Bagrodia Directows - Shii Brj Khanna

Partnor Company Sactetary  Maraging Diractor Chairman

PLACE @ Chandigarh
DATED @ 29.06 2007

ShA Crangdra Mohan
Bhri Ashish Bagrodia
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SCHEDULES WINSOME YARNS LIMITED
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2007 31.03.2006
(As. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
SCHEDULE - 1 : SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHGHRISED CAPITAL 2750.00 2750.00
2.75.00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ =ach
1SSLUED
26045578 Equity Bhares of Rs. 10" gach 2604.56 2604 .56
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP
2.56,65.979 Equity Shares of Rs. 10~ each 2566.60 2566. 60
Add @ Amourt Paid-up on shares forfeiterd 11.61 11.61
2574.11 257821
SCHEDULE - 2 : RESERVES & SURPLUS - -
CAPITAL RESERYE
State Investment Subsidy £5.00 25,0
Capital Regerve — Buyback of Shares 27.03 27.03
Capital Redemption Asserve
iAs per last Balance Sheet} 124.44 124 44
GEMERAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Shest 42,97 4297
SURPLUS
Az per annexed Profit & Loss Account 5127.12 4217.862
5346.56 4437 .06
SCHEDULE - 3 : SECURED LOANS — -
TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Forgign Currency Loans from The [FCI Lid, — 265.09
FAOM BANKS
Term Loans 7999.44 357178
Packing Credit 3470.47 33001 56
Yehicle Loan —_— 0.7
Jaeg.at _7139.32

NOTES :

1. Temm Loans of Az Ml lacs (M- Bs 265.89 Lacs) from IFC) and RS 532784 lacs (FY-Rs, 1009.00 Lacs) from banks are secured by mrtgage
of immaovable properties Situated & Willage Kurawala, Distt. Mohali and hypoethecalion of all the company's movakle propeches (save &
pxcept ook debts) including moveabie plant & mackinery, spares, tools and accessones bath prasent and fulure. subjact i the prior ¢harges
created’to be created in Evour of Company's bankers on specibed movable assets for the working capial faciles. Such Loans are also
quaranteed by two directors The Mortgage and Charges created shall vank pari-passy inter-38' Between the Banks. Temm Loans from Banes
of Az 2671.60 lacs [PY-Rs 2571.78 Lacs) under TUF Scheme are secured by way of hypothasation on Plart & Macinary and oiter assets

purchased thereundar.

2. Packing Credit Loan is sacured by hypothacation ol cuntént 2558t and 2156 Secundd by second chame on fixed assets of the company

and guaranteed by two directors.

SCHEDULE - 4 : UNSECURED LOANS

From Bark
Buyers Import Gredit

1300.00
5843.23

7343.23
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SCHEDULE - 5 : FIXED ASSETS {As. N Lacs)
GROSS HLOCK DEFRECIATION - HET BLOGK
Mahwe ol Astale Az &t Addilions Salex/ Aral Upto Far the Salef lipto Az al As at
(1.04,2006 sdurimarts 31032007  $1.02.2008 year Atjasiments 31032007 31.02.2007  31.03.2008
Tanglle
Freehold Land 3344 — — 3494 — — — — 134094 . 434.04
Leasehold Land™® K307 — 35050 26027 2,69 369 209 3pg 276.38 G27.5d
Buildings** 1746.50 — -— 174650 454 50 b2 43 — h11.83 1234.57 1287.00
Planl & Machnery 1207141 3E0.8E — 1245280 4601.80 359 63 ~— 825643 19637 704t
Furniture & Fixtures 239.41 30.00 — 269.41 11341 2522 — 130.73 130.68 125.090
Venicles 7128 1307 — 8435 3622 6.51 — 4272 41.63 07
[nlapatbie
Spacialised Software arsr — — rar 242 6.0 — 26.47 1080 16.85
Total 1513218 42396 150 .50 15206 64 0234 34 TAR 74t 2.89 5950.19 9225.45 92097.54
Previows Year 14048.67 116260 40.09 1513218 4h80.77 N 47 50 2234 33 2637 .BG 9498.95
1r:.l:::-tf.- :

Ingiide cost of gssets RS, 334 lacs as stated in Mo Mo, 7 of Schedula 15

b Building angl Furniture & Fixtures include Capital Expenditure incwmed on Assets nol owngd by the Company Bs. 41.18 lacs [Gross) and FAs. 56.94
lacs [Gross) (Pravious Year Rs. 41.18 lacs and RS, 56,94 lacs} and nat As. 24.71 lacs and AS. 32,30 lacs respeclively [Praviols year As. 28.83 lacs

and Rs. 39.85 IBcs)

wh Inclydes As. 2. B3 lags (Pravious Year - Ra 2 89 iacs) as amonisation of Leasehold Land and depregiation/amortlsation of eadier parisd As. 1.08 lacs

[Previous Year - s 912 lacs)

S3TNA3HIS

QILINI SNHYA JWOSNIM



SCHEDULES WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03_M07 31.03.2006
(As. in lags) {Rs. in lacs)
SCHEDULE - 6 : INVESTMENTS
Lun? Term Invastmenta (other than irade)
Who h{Eowr}ad subsidiary company - unguored fully paid up 1.05
i quity Shares of Winsome Yarns (Cyprus) Limited
of 1 cyprus pound each E—
1.05 —
SCHEDULE - 7 : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventorias
(Az taker, valued and certified by the managetnent)
Faw Matgrials 3330.88 233217
Steck in Process S53.76 416594
Stores & Sparas 405 B8 160.97
Fimshed Goods (including goeds in wanat
Rs. 21216 lacs (PY Rs. 184 .26 lacs) 141613 Br74.08
Waste [(As net reglisable valus) 6.72 14,69
5023.39 3TeR73
Sundry Debtorz (Unsecured, congidered Good)
Debts ower s months 34309 344,70
Ciher Debts 71550 4217
1058.59 1286.87
Cazh & Bank Balances
Cash in hand 0.01 .01
Bank Balances with scheduled Banks
On Current Acgounts 220.08 167.64
On Margin Account — 15268
Cn Unpaid Diyvidend Acocourt 20.42 15.26
On Fixed Deposit Account (Lodgad with Banks as Marging 1033.31 287 .50
1273.82 425 67
Loans & Advances (Unsecured, considered good) — _—
Advance recovergbke i cash or in kind or for valie to be received 15713 TAH 96
Advance Inoome Tax including TOS 143.56 3.3z
Advances iowards Share Application Money 1516.20 —
Refunds/Claims Recelvabie 135.46 16,949
MAT Credit Entitlerment 48,46 —
Interest Recelyablo 245,34 107.86
CenvatWAT/Sales Tax Aetmbursablo 580.45 44077
Socurity Deposits 1964 37.49
5827.24 _ 133041
SCHEDULE - 8 : CURRENT UABILITIES & PROVISIONS
CURAENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Credilors (Refer Mote Mo, 13) 3900.37 9524
Mook Overdraft (Temporarily overdrawn) 313.84 —
Interest Accrued but not due on Loans BB 13 2217
Cther Liablilties 132.43 4604
Unpaid Dividend* 20.42 15.26
4462.19 1163.71
PROYISIONS - -
For Retirement Benefis w3 arET
For Proposed Dividend 153.67 126.33
For Corparats Tax 144,81 E6.00
Far Tax on Dividend 21.59 18.00
350.56 2689.290
4812.75 1433 &1

*shall be credited to Investor's Education and Protection Fund when due,

az



SCHEDULES WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

PARTICULARS 2006-2007 20052008
(R=. in kacs) (A5, in laes)
SCHEDULE - 9 : SALES
Yarns 11611.28 120003, 11
Krnitwear 360.75 168,41
Wasle Sales 597.66 ha4 .43
Jol Charges [TDS Rs. Nil, Previous Year Hs. MNil) 9.48 18189
1257817 ToTaiEa
SCHEDULE - 10 : INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN STOCKS
Cinsing Stock
Finished Goods (Yarn} 1M11E6.78 874.9¢
Skock in Pracess 569.76 416,54
Waste 8.72 14.68
1992.67 1306.58
Less : Opening Stock
Finished Goods (Yarn) BTA.96 128906
Stock in Process 416.94 590 .52
Waske 14.69 3.53
13)6.59 188311
&BE.0B {(576.52)
*including trial run production of Rs. 5.36 lacs
SCHEDULE - 11 : RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening Stock 233217 188415
Purchazes 7491.83 B538. 6%
9824.00 B423.84
Closing Stocks 3330.86 233217
Raw Materials Consumed 6493.12 6041 87
SCHEDULE - 1Z : MANUFACTURING & OTHER EXPENSES
PAYMENT & PROVISIONS OF EMPLOYEES
Salaries, Wwages & Other Allowances 444,81 404 .67
Contribution to Provident & Other Funas 46.56 42 36
Empioyees Welfare 8.21 2219
- S00.58 - 464 27
MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Slores & Spares consumied 961,10 aaTe
Powar & Fuel 1425.20 131599
Repairs to Buildings 5.598 548
Repairs to Plant & Machinery 17.63 12.82
Frocessing Gharges & Dyeing Charges 250.96 226.98
Matenal Handing Charges 57.85 73.07
2618.72 2292 08




SCHEDULES WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

PARTICULARS 2006-2007 2005-2006
{As. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
SCHEDULE - 12 ; EXPENSES (continued)
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPEMNSES
Hent 34.58 o
Printing & Stationery 1.79 2.0
Rales & Taxes 0.4a2 6.06
Director Sifting Fee 1.90 1.55
Insurance T0.22 520 55
Repair & Maintenance G.73 —
Travelling & Conveyance 138.97 o7.85
Miscellaneous Expenses 60,55 7165
Postage, Telegrams and Telephones 52.06 3034
Legal & Professional Charges 42.30 12.19
Charity & Donaticn 10.14 —
Prior Peripd Expenses (Met) 60.31 23.34
Forgign Exchange Variatior Loss (Net) —_ 2781
AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Audit Fees 1.50 1.G0
Tax Audit Fees 0.15 0.20
Clher Services 0.06 —
Ae-imbursement of expenses 077 2.58 0.45 1.68
491.45 36117
SELLING EXPENSES
Commisskon on sales 291,87 21813
Freight & Handling Charges 609.37 497 a8
Advertizenant & Cihar Selling Expenses 54.62 50.03
915.86 Fioo.04
154561 367,50
SCHEDULE - 13 : FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Interest on Term Loans a01. ™ 21491
(Nt of re<mbursement under TUFS Ra. 12792 Lacs
Previods Year As. 8558 Lacs)
Interest on Working Capital {Net of receipt of
Rs. 1.74 lacs Previous Year Rs. 9.42 Lacs) 37690 226.88
Bank Charges & Commission 117.89 123.08
T96.50 S64.88
SCHEDLULE - 14 : OTHER INCOME
Miscellanecus Ineome (Refer Note Mo, 5) 101.03 0.4%
Imerest Received (TDS Rs. 266 lacs Previous Year As. 2.26 lacs} 49.02 2005
Sale of Scrap 16.20 1519
Liability/Balances written back [nat) 0.23 0.68
Exchange Rata Difference [Met) 101.1t —
Profit on Sale of Flwed Assets (Mote Mo, 7 of Schedule 15) 268.63 a.0v
Export Incentives 1.00 1.72
54%.12 45.44)
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

SCHEDULE - 15

ACCOLUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
Al Statarnuni of Significam Accaurnting Paolicies

10.

11

Basis of Accounting

" The Financial Statements are prepared as a going-coneern under historical cost convention on an accnial

basiz except those with significant uncertainity and in accordance wath the Companies Act, 1956,

Accourting policies not stated explicitly otherwise are consistent wilh generally accepted accounting

pnnciples and mandatory accounting standards.

Use of Estimates

The presentaton of financial statemants requires esiimates and assumplions to be made that affect the

reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial stalements and the reported amount

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and the

astimates are recognised in the period in which the results ara knowndmatsrialized.

Revenue Racogrition

Revenue reprasents the net invoice value of goods and services provided to thitd parties after deducting

discounts, volume rebates, autgolng sales taxes and duties, and is recognised usually when all significant

nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset sold are transferred 1o the cuslamer and the commodity has

been deliversd to the shipping ageni. Aevenuas from sale of matenal by-products are included in revenue.

Interest incame is recognised on an accrual basis in the incaoming statement.

Borrowlng Cosat

Barrowing Cost atirioutable to the acquisiion or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part

of the cost of such assets upto the date when such assets are ready for intended use. Other bomowing

costs are Gharged as expense .1 e year in which they are incurred.

Fixed Assets

Fixgd Assets are siated at cost of acquisition inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and installation expensss

less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, If any.

Expenditure during Construction Period

Al pre-cperative project expenditure {net of income accured) incurred uplo the date of commercial

praduction is capitalized and the same are aflocated to the respective assets on the completien of the

sonstrucion period,

Cepreciation

tiy Depreciation has been pravided on Fixed Assets on Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner
specified in Schadule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 except in respect of additfons ariging on account
of translation of foreign currency labilitles for aceuisiion of fixed assets, Insurance spares, on additions;
extenslons forming an integral part of axisting plants and on the revised camying amount of the assets
identtied as impaired on which depreciation has been provided over residual Ive of the respective
fixad assats,

(i Amortisation of leesehold fand and buikdings has been done in proportion to the period of fease.

[iii] Fixed Assets where ownarship vests with the Governmant/Local authorties are amorized =t the rates
of depreciation specified in Schedule XV 1o the Companies Act, 1956,

{iv] Capital Expendliture on assets not owned are written off over the duration of ¢cortract or ten years
whichever iz Iower.

Intanglble Agssets

Intangible Assets are stated at cosl of acquisition less accumuiated amortisation, Technical know-how is

amartized over the useaful life of the underlying plant. Specialised Softwara is amortised over an estimaten

useful period of six year. Amortisation is done on straight line basis.

Inventories

{il Inventories are valeed at lower of cost or net realisable valus except for scrap and by-products which
are valued at net realisable value.

{iiy Cost of invertories of finished goods and work-in-process includes material cost, cost of conversion
and othar related overhead costs.

fiii} Cost of inventaories of raw maleral, work-in-process and Stores & Spares is determined on weighted
average cost method.

Invastmants

Long Tarm Investmenlts are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in long term investments is made only

if such decline is other than temporary.

.Forgign Currency Transactions

(i Transactions denominated in foreign clrtencies are normally recorded at the eachange rate prevailing
at the time of the ransachon,
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

(i} Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates, In
case of monetary fems which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference batween the
year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognised as exchange difference and the premium
paid on forward contracts has been recogrised over the |ife of the contract.

(i) Mon monstary forgign currency items are cared at cost

(iv) Any income oF expenss on account of exchange difference either on setflernent or an translation is
recognised in the Profit and Loss account except in cases whara they relate to acguisition of fixed
assets in which caze they are adjusted o the carrying cost of such assets.

12, Ratirmment Benefits

Cantribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are accounted on actual fiability basis. Gratuity

and leave encashment liabilies are accountad for on the basis of actuarial valuation,

13.Export Incentivas

Dty drawback is recognised at tha ime of exports and the benafits in respect of adwance license recaiverd

ry the company against exporl made by it are recognised as and when goods are impored against theen.

14. Gevernment Grants

(i) fGrants relating to fixed assets are shown as deduction from the gross value of fiked a=sets and those
of the nature of profect subsicly are credited o Capital Reserves.

(i Cther Govemment grants including incentives are credited to Proft and Loss Account or ceducted
from the related expenses.

15. Provigion for Current and Deferred Tax

Prowlsion for currenl tax is made after taking info consideration benefits admisstble under the provisions

of the income Tax Act, 1961, Defamed tax resulting from “timing differepces” betweaen book and taxable

prefit is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted a3
an the balance shee! dale. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried fvward oty 1o the extent
that there is reascnablefvirtual cerainty that asset will be realised in futurae,

16. Impalrment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carmying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value, An

impairrment loss = charged ta the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as

impared. The impairment ioss recognised in prior accounting petiods is reversed il Ihere has been a

change in the gstimate of recoverable amourt.

17. Provision, Contlngent Liabilktles and Caontlgent Assets

Prowisicn invelving substantial degres of estimation in maasurament are racognisad when there is a present

okligation 25 2 result of past everts and itg iz porbabile that there will be 2n gutfiow of resources. Contingent

Liabilties are nol recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contigent Assets are neither recogrised nor

disclosed in the financial statemants.

B) NOTES CN ACCOUNTS
1. a) During the year the Company has made an Investmeant of Rs. 1.05 lacs In the capital of wholly cwned
subsidiary eompany Winsome Yams {Cyprust Lid. (WYCL), The WYCL has Incumed loss dunrng the
year ended 31st March, 2007 in view of the long term in nature, ro provision for dimution in value
of investments is considered necessary by the management.

b Loans and Advances includes advance share application money {pending allotment) of As. 1516.20 Lacs
paid ta the above wholly owned subsidiary company.

2. Capfial Work-In-Progress Inclodes (Rs. in laos)
Current Year Previous Year

b. Pre-operative expendilure as follows
Qpening Balance —_

Stores & Spares 2D4.62 4{.89

Repairs & Maintenance 13.14 —

Power & Fuel . 60.31 1.1

Salary, Wages & Allowances 60.48 2338

Lpfront Fees 101.81 15.85
44033 8133

Less, Capitalised dunng the year 203.58 81.33
M. Th

Above is exciuding interest Rs. 121.03 lacs (Previous Year As. 1268 lacs).

3. Lwans & Advances ihcludes advances against capltal orders amounting to As. 48,15 Lacs (Previous Year
Rs. Mil)
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

=

10,

11

12

13.

14.

In accordance with the Accounting Standards (AS-28} on "Impairment of Aszets” issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, during the year the company has reassessed s fixed assels and is
of the view that na further impairment/reversal s considared o ba necassary in view of its expected
tealisable value.

Miscellansous income incluges Hs 95.5389 lags (Rs. Nil) on account of refund of duty drawback allowea
to 100% EQL by NSEZ.

Lnit No. |l of the Company being a 100% EOU and covered under Section 108 ol the Income Tax Act,
1961, eligible fy Sertain tax dedudtion/concessions.

During the year the Campany has deliversd possession of laasghoid land, building etc. {cost capitalised
in previous year As. 336 lacs) to a party by way of request for cancellation of lease deed madse in earher
year as per the order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court. Accordingly, additional Rs. 300 lacs received toward
cost and compensation (total amount As. 838 lacs) is shown as part of profit on sale of fixed assets
{Scheduia-14].

Managedal Remuneration (Rs. in lacs)
Ramuneration 10 Exscutive Direciors 2006-07 2005-06
il Salary 26.91 19,32
i) Comtribution to Provident Fund & Family Pension Funds 1.73 1,66
{iiiy Perquisites & Other Bengfits 1.15 1.15
(iv] Commission a.75 5.60

Ceomputation of net proflt In accordance with sectlon 349
of tha Companels Act, 1956

Profit before taxation 1111.55 535,66
AddiiLess) - Loss/[Proflf) on sale of assets {269.63) —
Directors Sittig Fess 1.90 1.55
Comrmission a.7s .60
Managing Director's remuneration 29.79 23,13
Net Profit for the yaar 8B2.36 568,04
Managing Director's Commission & 1% [Reatrictad to) 8.75 560

Depreciation on certain Plant & Machinery Is provided by considering it as continuoys process plant based
on technical assessment which has been reliad upon by the auditors,

Since it is not possible ta agcertain with reasonable cerainty/accuracy the amount for accrual in respect
af cartain insurance and other Haims and interest on overdue bills, the same are continued o be accounted
far on settlementacceptance basis,

. The cormpany has taken legal and othey persuasive actions for recovery of certain debtors aggregating

to Rs. 14976 lacs {Previous Year FAs. 185.57 lacs], in the opinion of the managemaent, thess autstanding
are good and recoverabla,

-Addition to Ficed Assets/Capital Work-in-progress includes gain {neth of Rs. 113,59 lacs (A= 5.19 lacs)

an account of exchange rate fluctuation of foreign currency loan.

a) Sundry Creditors include Ps. Nil {Previous Year Rz. Nil) due to Small Scale Industrial Undartakings
to the extent such patrties have been identfisd from available information.

Bl The Company is in process of collection of full infermation in respect of SME The Micra Small & Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2008). However information so far available iif 30.04 2007) with the
Company. tharg is no delay in payment of dues to such snterprises.

Al Contgent Liabilities, not provided for in respect of ; {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at Az at
21st March, 2007 315t March, 2006

iy Bils discourted with banks 1B53.12 1654 26

i} Outstanding Letter of Credit BGE6.B7 891,10

iii] Sales Tax labilty in respect of matters in appeal 8.05 8.05

iv) Excige duly show cause natices/matters in appeal 894 52 185.18

v} Other Maiters — 10,14

B) Estimated amuunt of confracts remaining to ba executed an 167.68 6854

Capital Account and not provided for (net of advances
Rs. 48,15 Lacs previpus year Rs 3.86 Lacs)
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15

Rezearch and development expenditure amounting to Bs. 14.89 lacs (Previous year Rs. 16.98 lacs) have
been debited 10 Profit and Loss atcount.

16. The company has given imerest free loanfadvances in the nature of loan, to employees, in the ardinary

17,

18.

19,

20.

.

course of its business. No lear/advances in the nature of the laans heve been given to emplayees/others
for the purpose of investrnent in securties af the company.

Segment Reporting

(i} The Compan is only in one line of business namely Textile {Yam and Knitling]

{iy The segment revenue is geographical segments considered for disclosure is as foliow
(2] Revenue inside India includes sales 10 cuslomers located within India.
{0} Aevenue outside India includes sales to customers Iocated outside India.

information about geographical segmants (by locatioh of customars) (As. in iacs
Particulars India Quiskde India Tatat
il BEsternal Revenue-Sales 4010.37 858880 1257917
5168.58) (7H63.06) (12731.84]

i) Carmying amount of segment assels J10E5.19 2055.19 F3143.38
by location of assets (14952.79) (2132.09) (17084 88

iij Capital Expenditura 10073.45 — 1073 45
(1414.75) — (1414.76)

During the yaar, deferred tax in respect of iming differences has been re-assessedfre-computed and
Liability [net) ampurting ta Rs, 10.04 |acs for the year has been reversed/credited to Profit & Loss Account.
200607 2005-06

Deferred Tax Uability (Differentlal Depreciation) 4731.78 471 .57

Prior penod ad|ustments inet] include Freight & handling charges Bs, 10.49 lacs (Rs. 2.51 lacs; Interest
expense As. Mil (Rs, 0.28 lacs), Cammissich on Sales Rs, 6.58 lacs {Rs. 11.82 lacs), Electricity charges
Hs. Nil {As. 6.18 lacs), Discount and Brokerage Rs. 41.18 lacs (As. 289 lacs).

Balance of cettain debtors, loans and adwances and creditors are in the process of confirmation:
reconciliation.

Earning per share
Basis for calculation of basic and diluted Eaming Par Share as under

2006-07 2005-06
Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders Hs. in lacs) 108506 664,55
Weighted average number of equity shares 25865579 25665479
Mominal Value per equity share (Rs.) 10 10
Basic and Diluled £PS [Hs.) 4.23 2.59

22.Related party disclosures.
List of “Felated party & Relationship disclosures™ are glven below : (as identified by the management)

1.

(a} Associate
Winsome Textile Industries Lid.

(b} Wholly Owned Subsidiary GCompany
Winsome Yarns {Cyprus) Limiled

Key Management Parscnnel and their ralatives

- Shri Manish Bagradia Key Management Perscnnel
- Shri Satish Bagrodia Father
- Shri Ashish Bagrodia Brother

Qrganlaatlon where Key Management Personnef & thelr relative have significant influence
- Winsome Foundation
- Starpoint Finamcial Services (Pyt) Lid.
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Aggregetad Relatited Party disclogures for the year ended 2006-2007

[As. in Lats)
Farticulars Agsociate Subzidiary Key Managernert  (rganisations where Tatazl
Company Compary persunnel and their Key Managemeni
relafivac Preanngl & their
relative hawe
significance influgnces
Sale of material & 189.63 — — - 189.63
goads and services {182.04) — i— (—h (1B2.04)
Furchase of material 251.51 — — 16.490 267.90
qoods and services {254 05) i—] i—I (—1 {284 0F)
Expenses reimbursed to 33.64 — — — 3369
others (4.57) =] {— — (4.57)
Expences paid on 836 — — — 8.36
oehalf of others {13.02) i— i—] — [13.02;)
Remuneration — —_ J8.54 - 3654
—l (=} (27.73) (—) {27.73)
Investment in subsidiany - 1.05 — — 1.05
— (=] {— — (=l
Advances as share ap@ication — 151620 — - 1516.20
N =} —i i—l =1 -
Dwrector Sitting fes — — .68 — 0.60
(= (—} (it 35) —J {0.35)
Balance ourstanding 66,34 (D) 151725 {Dn) 8.75 (Cr} — 1574.84
as at 31.03.2007 {151.17} {On —) (5.60) (CF {—} (145.57)

tote . Chairman and Managing Director have given guarantges to secured lenders against loans taken by the
Company (Refar notes of Schedule-3).

23. Additionai Infarmation pursuant to the provisiona of Paragrapha 3 and 4 of Schedule-¥1 to the Companies
Act, 1956,

{a) Ucensed & Intatiad Capacity £006-07 200505
Licenced Capacity :

Yam — Spindles 133440 73440

— Rotors 1536 1836

Krilwzars {Mos.) 1544000 216000
Installed Capacity .

Yarmn — Spinciles 49624 40824

— Knitwears [Nos.) 192000 192000

{b} & Productlon, Tumover & Stocks - {value As. in lacs)

Parilcwars Opening Shock Prodatiian Farchase Turnbyer Closing Stock

Giy. MT  Vake iy NT Gy, MT  ¥alup O MT  Vape Oty M7 Value

fam BFO5E5  BRP A4 8574 628 — —  @not fEnze W07 13ELde

(FT44773) HEF706 (0076.268) (5143 BOEE{IORN 38 (12006 1) (BRO.BE5)  (dsiAd)

Knitwears [Pes.) 11794 2228 BOREE — — M2 36075 g 3280

(B508)  [12.00) (57318} {— (— (54030) 87Dy fiRed) 222

Waste/Scran 1469 — — — - 58T E6 — f.72

{3.53) — — — — (54447 —  [4E8)




WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

{iiy Raw Materlal Congurmed Oty. Valga Gty Value
(MT} (MT)
Visrose 23778 205.21 485442 348.83
Cotton 13050 .95 614252 12844 51 OGB4 44
Yarn 34.180 14541 20,325 58.30
{iii} Total Valus of Raw Materials and Stores & Spares Consumed
Raw Material Stores & Spares
Current % Previous % Current % Previous %
year Year year Year
Imported 15278 235 37526 .18 2417 2.81 126.58 17.08
Indigenous 6340 .36 97.66 5715.42 93,82 B3E.S3 0719 62514 8o G4
Testal 6493.14 100.00 &091.67 10000 BEL.10 10000 75372 100.00

Profit or loss on sale of stores/raw matenals remains adjusted in thair regpective consumpltion accounts !

e}

d)

<

24,

26.

314t March 2007

imports at CIF Value : (Rs. in lacs)
Plamt & Machinery T196.73
Spare Parts & components 62.94
Haw Material 54933
Earning in Foreign Exchange :

Export of geads oh FOB basis a073.40
(Excluding Export through Export Houses)

Interest realisation 1.74
Expondhure in Foreign currency @ {Cash basig)

Foreign Fravelling 49.68
Commission on salas 4812
Consultancy Feoes 16.45
Others ¥.34
Bark Charges 19.83
Ramittance In Forelgn Currency on Dividend Account

Number of Mon Resident Shareholders &1
Mumber of shares held by Mon Resident Sharsholders 27400
MWet Amount of Dividend Remitted {Amounl in Bs.) 13700
Yaar to which Bividend rolatas 2005-08

31st March 2006
{Rs. in lacs)
8431

130.81

11.38

13731
D42

49.38
8525

MIL
1574
2224

6d
28200
14100
20405

Figures for the previous syar have been re-groupedirecasl wherever necessary to make them comparable

with those of current year.

Schedule 1 to 15 fomm an integral part of the Palance Shest and Profit & Loss Account.

Aa per our report of sven date,
For LODHA & CO.
Chartersd Accountants

MK, Lodna K.Y, Singnal Manish Bagrodia Satish Begrmdia Directos -
Fariner Company Secrslary  Managing Dirsdior Chainman

Shri Bnij ¥hanna
Shr Chandra Mohan

Shri Ashish Bagrodia

PLACE : Chandigarh
OATED : 29.068.2007

ke L1



WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

27. Balance Sheet abstract and Company's General Busineas profile as per Schedule VI, Part {IV) of the
Companies Act, 1956.
1. egistrathon Details

Registration No, (CIN}  [L17115CH1990PLC010566] State Code
Balance Shaet Date 31-03-2007 s ]
Il. Capital Raised during the year (Amount Rz in thousands)
Public Issue Rights Issug
T N
Bonus 550 Privale Placement
Nil [Nl 1
lll. Poasition of Mobillzation and Deployment of Funds {Amount Rs. in thousands)
Total Liakilities Total Assets
Sources of Fumnds
Paid-up Capital Hosarve & Surplus
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans
734323
Forfeited share acoount Deferred Tax Liability
Application of Funds
WNet Fixed Assets lnvestments
1915029
Met Current Assels Misc, Expenditure
—— ]
Accumulated Losses
[ =1
I¥. Performance of Company (Amount Rs, in thousands)
Turngyer including other iNcome Total Expenditure
1367654
Proflt Betore Tax Profit After Tax
Eaming per share (Fs.} Dividend Fate (%)
& 1

V. Generlc Names of Principal Products of Company (as par monetary 1emns)
ltern Code Mo,  COTTON YARN CONTAINING B5% OR MORE OF COTTON H20500
ltern Code No.  COTTON YARN CONTAINING LESS THAN 85% COTTON S20600
ltem Code Mo, APPAREL, KNITTED OR CROCHETED 8101

A& per gur repart of éven daie.
For LODHA & CO.
Charterad Accountanis

M.K. Lodha K.¥. Singhal Manish Bagrodla  Satish Bagrodia, Dhrectars © Shri Brij Kharma
Partrer Company Secretary  Managing Director Chaimna Shri Chandra, Mohan
Shri Ashish Bagrodia

PLACE : Chandigath
DATED : 29.06.2007
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2007

2006-2007 A005-2006
{Rs. in Lacs) (A3 In Laez}  (Bs. imbacs) (RS in Lacs)

A.  GASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

HET PROFIT/ILOSS) BEFORE TAX AND EXTRAURDINARY [TEMS 111159 539 B

Afjusimend for ;

Deprecigtion THLA5 78,22

Amrtisation of Leasehold Land 359 285

Profiti{pss) on sale of fived assels (269.53) {3.07}

[nerest paid 67661 441.80

Interest income (49.02) 119,70 {20.05) 14475
222025 168443

{PERATIKS PROFIT BEFDRE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Adjustment for :

Frage & ather recedvable (4115.80) 6877

Inventories {2023.56) 122.56

Trade & other Payables 171 95 {2767.51) (350.27) 1458.04]

GASH GEMERATED FROM DPERATIONS {547.26) 152%.51

Direct Taxes Paid (64.91} (35.34;

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (61217} 143007

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (10117.74) (1402.35)

Sae o fiued assets 61724 40 BA

Purchase of Investments {1.09}

Intzrest Aeceived 44.02 (9452.5) 20.05 (1341 .63

WET CASH USED IN INVESTIHG ACTIVITIES 19452.53) 1347 B&)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FIHANCING ACTIVITIES
Proteeds friom issue of Share Capital —_ —
Interest Paid {614.65| {434.42

Oividerd inciuding Dividend Tax [146.33) (146,33

Proceeds trom bomowings 12364.92 182093

Repayment of bomowings (695,09} 10912.85 (1256.36) (7.38)
HET GASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1M912.85 i7.38
Net InCreasesdecrease in cash and cash equivaents B48.15 &1.11
Cash & Cash equivalem being cash & bank balances 426.67 44,56
as at 31,03 2006 {opening balance)

Cash & Cash equivakent being tash & bank balances 1271.62 42567

as @l 31.03.2007 (closing halange)

As ped our report of even date.
For LODHA & CO.
Chartersd Accountants

M.K. Lodha K.\, Singhal Manish Begrodla Satizh Bagrodia Directars @ Shii Briy Khanne
Partrar Company Secretary  Managing Director Chaimman Bhri Chandra Mohan
Bhr Ashish Bagrodia

FLACE : Chandigarh
DATED | 29.05.2007
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

SECTION 212
Statarnent pursuance to Saction 212 of tha Companies Act, 1956 relating to subsidiary company

5.Mo. Pariculars

1. Hame of wholly owned Subzidiary Company Winsome Yarns (Cypius) Limited
2. Financial year of the Subsidiary Company ended on J1st Decernbwr
3. Date of incorporation ath Novemnber, 2007
4. Shares of the Subsidiary Company held on the above date
and axtent of holding
a; Equity shares 1727
b Extent of Holding 100%:

&, The net aggregate amaunt of the Subsidiarles profit/{Loss)
o far as it is concerned with the members of Winzome

Yarrs Urnited

{il Not dealt within the company's accounts
a) For the financial year of the Subsidiany {in Lacs) {As. 5.67 Lacs)
b) For the previcus financial years of the subsidiarny/since MIL

it became Holding Campany's subsidiary (in Lacs}
{ii} Oeafth within the bolding company's accounts

a} For the financial year of the Subsidiary {in Lacs) il
b) For the previous financial years of the subsidiary/since il
it became the Holding company's subsidiary (in Lacs)
46,  Material changes, if any, bebveen the end of the financial Mo such material changes
year of the subsidiary company and that of the Halding
Company
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors of Winsome Yarns Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Winsome
Yarng Limited and its Subsidiany.

We have axamined the attached consolidated Balance Sheet of Winsame Yarns Limited and its subsidiary
as at 31st March 2007, and the consplidated Profit and Loss Accurd and also the consalidatad Cash Flow
Staterment for the year then ended.

These financial statements are 1he responsibility of Winsome Yarns Limied's management. Qur respansibility
is to express an opinion on thesa financial statements based on ouwr audit. We conducted our audit in
accardance with generally accepted auditing standards in India These standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to ablain reasonable assurance about whather the financial statements are preparad, in
all matarial rezpecls, in accordance with an identified financial reporting framework and are free of material
misstalements. An audit includes examining, on a l&sls basis, evidence soupporting the amounts ang
disclosuras in the financial statements, An audit atso includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant sstimates made by management as well as, evaluating the overall financial statement prasentalion
Wg believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not audit the financial stataments of subsidiary Winsome Yarns (Cyprus) Limitad, whose financial
statement reflects total assets of As. 1485.20 lacs as at 31st March 2007 and total revenues af Rs. Mil for
the year then ended. The financial statements of subsidiary which was furnished to us by the mangement,
was unaudited,

Attention ig invited o

{a) Provision for depreciation has been made on certaln Plant and Machinery aa per the rates
applicable to continuous process plant based on technical evalutlon aa atated in the said note,
which iz a techpical matter {Impact Unascertalned). (Hote No. 9 of Schadule 15 of Winsome Yarns
Ltd.)

(o)  Man provislon tor shortfall in recovery {amount unascertainable) agalnst overdus debts aggregat-
ing Bs 149.76 lacs for which legal and other persuasive actlons for recovery has been initiated,
since in the opinlon of the management these debts are good and recoverable [Note No. 11 of
Schedula 15 of Winsome Yams Ltd,)

Subject to the above, we repar that the eonsolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company
in accordance with the requitements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21 “Consolidated Financial Statements”
issued by the Instiute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the basis of the separata audited financial
staterments of Winsome Yarns Limited and unaudited financial staterment of its subsidiary ingluded in the
consolidated financial statements.

{On the basis of the information and explanationz give to us and on the consideration of the separate audit
report on individual aydited financial statements of the Company and unaudited financial statements its
Subsidiary included in the Consolidated Finangial Statements, we are of the opinion that the said consehdated
financial statements read togethar with notes thereon, give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the Gonsolidated state of affairs of the company and
its Subsidiary as at 31st March, 2007,

B im the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss account, of the Consolidated results of operations of the
Company and its Subsidary lor the year the ended; and

c) in the caze of Consclidated Cash Flow Stalement, of the consglidatled cash flows of the Company and
ils Subsidiary for the year then ended.

For Lgdha & Co.

Chartered Accarntants

Plare . Chandigarh M.KE. Lodha
Diate  ; 28.06.2007 Parlner
Mombarship Mo 85155




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2007

WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

PARTICULARS J1st March 2007
(Rs. In lacs)
SQURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' Funda
Share Capitai 2578.21
Reserves & Surplus 5340.8%

Less) Foreign Cufrency Tranalation Reserve

Loan Funds

Sacured Loans
Unsecurgd Loans
Ceterred Tax Liability {Meth

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Asseis

Gross Block
Less ;. Depreciation

Met Block
Capital work-in-progress

Cumrant Assets, Loans & Advances

Inventories

Surwdry Debtors

Cash and Bank Balances
Loans & Advances

Less : Current Llabliles & Provisions

MNat Gurrent Assals

Accounting Policies & Motes on Acoounts

Ax per our report of sven data.
For LODHA & CO.
Charterad Accountants

M.k, Lodha k.. Singhal

PL&GE © Chandigarh
DATED : 2B.06.2007

Manish Bagrodia
Partnes Company Sacrelary  Managing Director

3284 5307.05

11469.91
7343.23
1582.72
2829112
15205.64
588019
8223545
8034 .84
19159.29
£823.99
1050.59
1299.61
5764.70
13546.98
481515
213183
25391.12
Satish Bagrodia Direclars @ Shi Brij Khanna,
Chairman Shri Chandra Mohan

Shr Ashish Bagrodia




PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2007

WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

PAATICULARS Fist March 2007
(Rs. In lacs)
INCOME FROM OPERATICHNS
Sales 12578.17
Less Excise Duty 1209.82
Mel Sales 12449.34
Increasse/{Decrease) n Stocks 6A5.08
Char Incpme 541.12
13676.54
COST OF OPERATIONS
Aaw Materials consumed 6a83.14
Cotton Yarn Furghase —
Manufacturing & Other Expenses 4532.26
Intgrest & Financial Charges 796.50
11821.582
PROFIT BEFORE DEPRECIATION & EXCEPTIOWAL ITEMS 1854 .62
Less ;. Depraciatian T44.79
et Profit before Tax 1105.88
Less - Provision for Taxation
— Current Tax 58.81
Credit against MAT (46.46)
Fringe Benelit Tax £.10
-— Delerred Tax Lability/{Asset) 10.04
Met Profit after Tax 1079.39
Add ; Balance hrought forward from last year 4217.62
Balangce available for appropriation 52587.01
APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 153.97
Corporate Dividend Tax 21.56
Balanpe carried to Balance Sheet 5121.45
b297.01
Earning Per Share-Basic and Diluted (As) 4,21
Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts
Ag par our reporl of even date.
For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
M.K. Lodha KA. Singhal Manlsh Bagrodia — Batish Bagrodia Directors @ Shri Brij Khanna

Parmer Company Secretary  Mamaging Dlrector Chaiman

PLACE : Chandigarh
CATED | 28.06.2007

Shn Chancdra Maohar
Shn Ashish Bagrodia
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET PROFIT/(LL5S) BEFORE TAX AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

Adjustment for :

Depreciation

Amortisation of Leasehold Land
Profit!{Loss) an sale of fiked assets
interesl paid

Imterest income

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
Adjustment for :

Trade & other receivable

Irventories

Trade & other Payables

CASH GEMERATED FROM OFERATIONS
Direct Taxes Paid

MET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B. CAS5H FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assels

Sale of fixed assels

Interest Recaived

NET CASH USED IN INVESTIMNG ACTVITIES

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from issue of Share Capital
Interast Paid
Dividend including Dividend Tax
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Met Increase/decrease In cash and cash equivalents
Cash & Cash equivalent being cash & bank balances
as at 31.03.2006 (opening balance)

Cash & Cash equivalent being cash & bank balances
as at 31.03.2007 (¢losing balance)

As per our repuart of even daia.
For LODHA & CO,
Chartared Accowttants

M.K. Lodha
Partner

K.y Singhal Manish Bagradia
Company Secratary  Managing Director

Satish Bagrodia
Chairman

PLACE . Chandigarh
CATED @ 26062007

206-2007
(As. inLacs] (Rs. 1n Lacg)
1105.88
744 B85
3.89
[269.63)
&TE.61
{40.02) 1108.70
2214.58
{a087.47}
{2023.68)
2374.03 (2737.10)
{522.52)
(64.91)
(587 .43)
{10117.79)
&17.24
49.02  (9451.48)
[9451.48)
{614.65)
{146.33)
12359.92
(696.09) 10912.85
10912.85
B73.89
42567
129961

Directars :

Shri Bnj Khanna

Shri Chandra kMabgn
Shri Ashish Bagrodia
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WINSOME YARNS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

As par

The accounts have been prepared to comply with the requirements of Accounting Standard-21 o
include all material iterns.

Congalidaled linancial statements {CFS) comprisad the financial statements of Winsome Yarns Limited
and its following subsidiary as on 315t March 2007 :

Hame of the Subsldiary % Shareholding Country of Incorporation
a) Winsome Yarns {Cyprus] Limited 100% Cyprus

The Consolidated Financial Statemnants have heen prepared based on a line-by-line consclidation using
uniform accounting polices for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. The effects
of intra group transactions are gliminated in consolidation.

In view of insignificant/negligible transactions of the subsidiary companies the accounts of which are
annexed elsewheore, notes and schedules arg not prepared.

This is first year of Cansolidation, hance Previous Year figures are not given,

aur report of even date.

For LODHA & CD.
Charterad Accountants

M.K. Lodha K.Y, Singhal Manlsh Bagrodia — Satish Bagrodia Directora © Shtl Brij Khanna

Parinat Company Secretary  Managing Ciractor Crhairmen 8hri Chardra Mohan
Shri Ashish Bagrodia

PLACE : Chandigarh

DATED : 29.06.2007
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WINSOME YARNS (CYPRUS) LIMITED

Report of the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directars presents its first report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company for the period from 8 Movember 2006 (date of incorparation] 1o 31 March 2007.

Principal activities

2. The principal activities of the Company are the import and export of textile and apparels. and the holding
of investrnents. The company did not have any activities during the period under reviaw.

Review of developments, position and performance of the Company’s business

3. The financial position of the Company as presented in the financial stalements is considered satisfactory.
The nel loss of the Company for the period under review amounted 16 Eura 9750 and its net liabikities
al 311 March 2007 amounted o Turg 8023 The Board of Directors of the Company does not expect
any significant changes in the actiwties of the Company in the foreseeable future.

Principal risks and uncertaintles

4. Tha Board considers that the Company does not face any principle risks or uncertainties clher that those
stated in note 3 of the financial statemants.

Future devalopments

=3 The Board of Directors does not expect any significant fufure develapments other than those stated
it note 11 of the Directors’ report.

Resulls

6. The Company's results for the period are set out on page 6. The net loas far the perind is carned forward.

Share capital

7. On & November 2006 the Company issued 1000 ardinary shares of C£1,00 each. There were rna changes

in the share capital of the Company.

Board of Directors

8. The members of the Board of Directors at 31 March 2007 and at the date of this repard are shown on
page 1. Mr Soterakis Koupepides and Mrs Stella Raguna who were appoinled as Oirectors on 8
Movamber 2008, resggned on 16 November 2006 and were replaced by Mr Andreas Adexiow, Mrs
Andraulla Kakoyianni, Mr Ashish Bagrodia, Mr Manish Bagrodia and Mr Stelios Sivitanides who were
appointed as Directors on the same date.

4. In accordance with the company's Articles of Association, Mr Stelios Sivitanides Mrs Androuila
Kakoyianni, Mr Andreas Alexiou, Mr Ashish Bagrodia and Mr Manish Bagrodia retire and. being eligitile,
offer themselves for re-election.

10 There weare no significant changes in the assignment of responzibilities and remuneration of the Board
of Directors,

Evants atter the balance sheet date

11. In April 2007 the Company acquired 90% of the share capital of 2 Romarmian Company. namaely SC
Winspme Rarnaria SAL.

Branches
12.  The Ceompany did nat operate through any branches during the perica.
Auditars

13.  The auditers, PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
A resolution giving authority to tha Birectors ta fix their remuneration will be proposed at the Annua
General WMeeting.

By order of the Board

Btelios Sivitanides
Qirectar
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WINSOME YARNS (CYPRUS) LIMITED

Income Statement
for the petlod from B Movember 2006 (date of incorporation) o 31 March 2007

Note Eurc
Cther Losses - Met 5 (14}
Administrative expenses (9.7326)
Loas befora tax [49.750]
T T -
Net lags for the period {59,750
The attached notes are an integral pant of these financial statements.
Balance sheet
at 31 March 2007 Maote Euro
ASSETS
Current Assets
Teade and athar receivables ] 2.500.000
Cash and cash equivalents o 44 3385
2.044 338
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES -
Capital and reserves
Share capital 10 1.727
Accumuialed losses (9750
{B.023)
Current liabilities —_—
Trage and other payables 11 2.552 361
Total liabilities 2552 361
Tatal equity and liabilitles 2.544.33G
For and an behalf of the Board
Stelos Sivitanides, Directar
Androullz Kakoyianni, Direcior
Cash Flow Statement
for the period from 8 November 2006 {date of incorporation) to 31 March 2007
MNita Euro
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss befors tax {9750
Changes in working capital :
Trade and other receivables {2.500.000)
— Trade and cther payables 2.552.351
42 611
Cash generated from operations
Tax paid _
42,611
Net cash generataed from operating activities
Cash Flows from firancing activities
Issue of crdinary share capital 10 1.727
Mgt cash from financing activities 1.727
het increase in cash and cash equivalents 44338
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 9 44 338
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WINSOME YARNS (CYPRUS) LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

1.

General
Country of incorporation

The Company is incorparated and domiciled in Cyprus as a private limited liability company in
accardance with the provisions of the Companies Law, Cap. 113. lis registersd office is a1 53 Grivas
Dighenis Avenue, City House, CY-8047, Faphos, Cyprus.

Principal activitles

The princ:pal activities of the Company ara the international trading ie. import and expor of textile and
apparels. and the holding of investments.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies apphied in the preparation of these financial statements are sel out
below.

Basis of preparatlon

The financiat statemants of Winsome Yarns {Cyprus) Limiled have been prepared in accordance with
Imernational Financial Reporiing Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and
Intarnational Financial Reporting Standards (JFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board {(JAZB]. The financial statements comply with both these reporting frameworks becausa at the
tirme of their preparation all applicable IFRSs issued by the [ASE have bean adopted by the EU thraugh
the endorsemenl procedure establisned by the European Commission. In addition the finanecial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law,
Cap. 113, The financial statements have been prepargd under the historical oosl convention.

The preparation of financial slatements in conformity with IFARS requires the use of certain critical
accounling estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or argas whars assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
MNaote 4.

Earlier adoptlon of new and revised IFAS

Despite the fact that the period of these financial statements begins on & November 2006, the Company
adopted as from this date all new and revized IFAS that are relavant to its operations and are effective
for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2007,

At the date of authorisation of these financlal slatements the following new Standards and amendments
to the existing Standards were in issue but not yet effective:

Effective for years ending 31 December 2007

. IFR3 7 "Financial instruments: Disclosures” and 1AS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation of Financial
Statemenls™

. IFRIG Interpretation 7 "Applying the Restaterment Approach under 1AS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Econgmies”

. IFRIC Interpretation & “Scope of IFRS 2" effective from 1 May 2008

. IFRIC Interpretation 9 “Reassessment of Embedded Denvatives”

. IFRIG Interpretation 10 "Interim Financial Reporting and impairmeant”

Effactive for years ending 31 December 2008

’ [FRIC |Interpretation 11 “IFARS 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions™

. IFRIC terpretation 12 “3ervice Concession Arangements”.

Effective for years ending 31 December 200%

. IFRS § "Qperating Segments”
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WINSOME YARNS (CYPRUS) LIMITED

The Board of Directors anticipates that lhe adoplion of these Standards and IFRIC Interpratations in
futwre penads will have ne material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Foreign currency translation
(a} Functional and presentatlon currensy

tems ;ncluded in the Company’s financial statemenls are measured using the currency of the
primary economic gnwrgnment in which the entity operates {"the functional currency”). The
financial slatements are prezantad in ELAGC, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency,

(b}  Transactions and balances

Foreign curreney ransactions are translated into the functional curreney using the exchange rates
prevaiing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and tosses resulting from
the settiernent of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forgign currencies are recognised in the income
statement,

Tax

Current tax liabilities and assets for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expectec
to be paid o or recovered from the taxation authonties using the tax reles and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacled by Lhe balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability methad, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilies and their camying amounts in the financial statermentz. Deferred tax
ts determined using lax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enactad by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferrad tax asset is realised or the deferred
tax liabilty is settlad,

Defered tax assets arg recognised to the extent that It fa probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the tempaorary differences can be utilised.

Share Capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity.

Provigions

Provisions are recognised when the Caompany has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events, it is more likely than not that an ouiflow of resources will be requirsd to seftle the

ohligation, and the amount has beean reliably estimated,

Cash and cash equivaiants

Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash at bank.

Financial risk management

{a) Financial risk factors
The Company is exposed to liquidity risk and currency risk arising from the financial instruements
it holds. The risk management pelicies employed by the Company tn manage these risks are
discussed below.

I Ligquidity risk : Liquidity risk is the risk that arises when the malurity of agsets and lighilities
does not match.  An unmatched position potentially enhances prafilability, but can also
increase the risk of losses. The Company has procedures with the object of mirimizing
such losses such as maintaining sufficient cash.

{ii} currency rlak ; Currancy rigk is the sk that the value of financlal instruments will fluctuate
dua to changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises when future commercial
tranzactions and recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in & currency that is
not the Company's functional currency. The Company is exposed to forsign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures primatily with respect ta the Cyprus pound. The
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Company’s managemant menitors the exchange rate fluctuatisns on a continuous basis
and acts accordingly.

The foreign exchange difference credited to the income statement amounts to Eura 14,
is included within the opergting loss and relates to aoperating activities (Note 5).

{2 Falr valus estimatlon
Th.. 7ominal value less any estimated credit adjustments tar the financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than cne year assumed to approx.anate their fair values,

Critical accounting egtimates and judgements

Estimales and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and ather
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under \he
cirgumstlances. Considering the Company's current postion the Board has nat concluded to any
accounting estimates and judgemeants in the pericd under review,

Other lossas - net

Euro
MNet fareign exchangs transaction 0ss on operating activities 14
Expenses by nature
Auditars’ remuneration 2.225
Otner expenzes of administrative nalure 7.511
Total administrative sxpanses 9.735
T
Current lax :

Corporation tax

The tax on the Company's loss before tax differs from the theoretical amaurt that would anse using
the apptcable tax rates as follows :

Lozs before tax 8,750
Tax caloulated al the applicable carporation tax rate of 10% Grs
Tax effect of expenses nat deductible for tax purposes 354
Tax affect of tay losses for which no deferred tax was recognised a1
Tax charge

The Company is subject to corporation tax at the raie of 109%,

At 31 March 2007, the Company had tax losses of Euro 8.214 which can be carrigd forward and set
oft against future taxabie profits.

Mo provision for deferred taxation has been made az -

iy there are no differgnces between the amourts attributed to assets and liabilities for 1ax purpases
and their correzponding carrying amounts in the balance sheet: and

iii) there is uncertainty over the utilization of the accumulated tax |logsses in future years
Trade and other receivables
Othar receivables 2. 500000

Other receivables represent a partial payment for the acquisition of 933.750 shares in an ltalian
Company namely Newcocot Sl [t is expected that the tolal cost for this acquisition will ba Euro
4.500,000.

Cash and cash equivalants
Cash and cash aquivalents include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement .
Cash at bank . 44 338
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10.

11,

12,

13,

Share capHdal

Number

af shares CE Eura
Authorizad
Shares of CC1 each 10000 10.000
lazuad and fully paid
Shares of Gf1 each 1000 1,000 1727
Trade and other payvabiles
Payable o related parties (Note 123) 2 R48 243
Accrued expenses 4 118

2.552 351
The tarr value of rade and other payables which are due within ang year approximates their carrying
amount at the balance sheet date.
Aelated party transactions

The Company's is controlled by Winsome Yarns Limited, a public company incorparated in India, which
owns 100% the Company's shares.

The following transactions warg carried out with related parties :
{3) Shareholders current account
At begnming of the period —

Wirihdrawals during the period 1.70%
Depasits during tha perjod [2.542,970)
Al the end of periad (MNote 113 (2.548.243)

The balance due to the sharehalders bears no interest and is payable on demand.

(£]] Directera’ remuneration
The total rermuneration of the Dirgctors was as follows :
Fees 234

Evants after tha balance sheat date

In Agril 2007, the Company acquired 80% of the sharg capital af a2 Romanian Company, namaly SC
Winsome Romania SRHL.

Analysis of expenses
for the period from 8 Movember 2006 (date of In¢orporation) to 31 March 2007

Adminlstrative sxpenses

Incorparalion gxpenses

Accounting and administratian expenses
Auditors” remuneration

Cirectors foos

Secretarml fees

Unrecoverable WAT

3.536

2,324

2223

234

118

Bank charges FHD
519

8.738




